
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




             


 


 


 


 


 
 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Special Thanks to Meeting Sponsors: 


 


 
 


 


National Fish Habitat Partnership 


Beaver Creek, 
CO 


March 9-10, 2014 


Board Meeting Book  


for the National Fish 


Habitat Board 


 


Denver, CO 


 


  
 


 


 
 


 
 


 


 







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Adding pictures to your newsletter 


 


Caption describing picture or graphic. 


National Fish Habitat Board Book (M arch 9-10, 2014) Denver, CO 


 


 







 


      


 


 


 


 


 


Our kids’ favorite 


 Christmas joke: 


 


What do you call a person who is 


afraid of Santa Claus? 


 


Claustrophobic! 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Caption describing picture or graphic. 


On the back of your family’s newsletter, 


you may want to add a simple greeting, 


poem, or an example of your children’s 


artwork. This is the first part of the 


newsletter that your lov ed ones will see, 


so make sure that it is festiv e and eye-


catching.  


You can add your own artwork to the 


back of a family newsletter by scanning 


in a drawing or a photograph. 


 


A special message from our family  


 


A great way to add content to this 


newsletter is to include a calendar of 


upcoming ev ents or a special memory 


that your family shares. You can also 


transcribe the words of a song or a 


poem onto the back of your newsletter 


to set the tone for the rest of your 


message.  


With a little creativ ity and imagination, 


creating a holiday newsletter can be a 


great way to say “Season’s Greetings!”  


Season’s greetings! 


Our Family 


Address line 1 


Address line 2 


City, ST ZIP Code 


Phone: 


(242) 555-0167 


Fax: 


(242) 555-0168 


 


 


 


 


 


E-Mail: 


 someone@example.com 


Web Site: 


www.widgets.msn.com 


 


 


Pictures of your family trips, special ev ents, and ev ery 


day life will bring your newsletter stories to life. Once 


you hav e chosen a picture, place it close to the 


story. Be sure to place the caption of the image near 


the image. 


If you want to use clip art in your newsletter, you can 


find thousands of clip art images on Microsoft Office 


Online that you can download and insert into your 


newsletter. 


To change the pictures in this newsletter to your own, 


click the image you want to change. On the Insert 


menu, click Picture, and then click Clip Art or From 


File. Locate the image you want and double-click it. 


The new image will be inserted into the existing text 


box for easy positioning. 


Tip: Text boxes that contain images or text often do 


not hav e borders showing, so it may not be apparent 


that an item is placed within a text box. 


To see the text boxes that contain the pictures in this 


template, click Options on the Tools menu, click the 


View tab, and then select the Text boundaries check 


box under Print and Web Layout options.  


 


Page 2 


 


A favorite family 


phrase or slogan can 


go here. 


Christmas 2004 ● Volume 1, Issue 1 ● Your Family’s Name ● (242) 555-0193 


 



mailto:someone@example.com





 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


Our Family’s Name 


Address line 1 


Address line 2 


City, ST ZIP Code 


Friend’s Name 


Street Address 


City, State Zip Code 


 








 


Note: Council members indicated with italics are unable to attend this meeting.  
 


List of Meeting Participants 
Tuesday, February 4 and Wednesday, February 5, 2014 
 
Name   Title  Organization  
       
Federal Participants 
Ed Roberson  Assistant Director, Renewable 


Resources and Planning 
Bureau of Land Management 


Mark Schaefer   Assistant Secretary for Conservation 
and Management 


National Oceanic and Atmospheric 
Administration  


Buck Sutter  Director, Office of Habitat 
Conservation 


Michael Weiss  Senior Policy Advisor, Office of the 
Assistant Secretary for Conservation 
and Management 


Jon Jarvis  Director 
National Park Service Herbert Frost  Associate Director, Natural Resource, 


Stewardship and Science 
Mary Wagner  Associate Chief 


USDA Forest Service 
Dave Cleaves  Climate Change Advisor 
Jason Weller  Chief 


USDA Natural Resources Conservation 
Service 


Leonard Jordan  Associate Chief for Conservation 
Martin Lowenfish  Landscape Conservation Initiative 


Team Leader 
Dan Ashe  Director 


US Fish and Wildlife Service 
Stephen Guertin  Deputy Director 


Rachel Jacobson   Acting Assistant Secretary for Fish 
and Wildlife and Parks 


   


State Participants 
Marc Miller   Director  Illinois Department of Natural Resources  
Mallory Martin  Chief Deputy Director  North Carolina Wildlife Resources 


Commission 
David K. 
Whitehurst  


Director, Bureau of Wildlife 
Resources 


Virginia Department of Game and Inland 
Fisheries 


       
US Federally Recognized Tribal Participants 
Terry Williams  Fisheries and Natural Resources 


Commissioner 
Tulalip Tribes 


       


Non‐Government Organization Participants 
Gary Tabor  Executive Director  Center for Large Landscape Conservation  







 


Note: Council members indicated with italics are unable to attend this meeting.  
 


Leslie Honey  Vice President of Conservation 
Services 


NatureServe 


Lynn Scarlett  Managing Director, Public Policy  The Nature Conservancy 


Jad Daley  Climate Conservation Program 
Director 


The Trust for Public Land 


       
International Participants 
Madeline L. Maley  Executive Director Regional 


Operations South Area 
BC Provincial Government (Ministry of 
Forests, Lands and Natural Resource 
Operations) 


William Kostka  Executive Director  Micronesia Conservation Trust 
Eric Schroff  Director  Yukon Government, Department of 


Ecology 
       
Indigenous Participant 
Ulalia Woodside   Regional Assets Manager, Natural 


and Cultural Resources Land Assets 
Division, Endowment Group 


Kamehameha Schools 


       
LCC Participant 
Ken McDermond  Coordinator  South Atlantic LCC 
       
Major Partnerships Participants 
Jeff Raasch  Wetland and Joint Venture Program 


Leader 
Bird Habitat Joint Venture Partnership 


Michael Andrews  Vice Chair  National Fish Habitat Board 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 








  National Fish Habitat Board  
  March 9-10, 2014 Meeting 


  Tab 10 


 


 
 


Title : Landscape Conservation Cooperatives Council Inaugural Meeting 
 
Desired outcome(s):  
1) Board understanding of topics discussed, meeting outcomes, and next steps.  


 
Background:   
During the October 2013 Board meeting in Charleston, the Board authorized the Board chair 
to fill as seat on the Landscape Conservation Cooperative (LCC) Council, with the 


understanding that the vice-chair or Science and Data Committee Chair may serve as proxy.   
 
The Board Vice-chair attended the first meeting of the Council on February 4th and 5th at the 
National Museum of the American Indian in Washington, D.C. Council members represent 


federal and state agencies, Tribes and First Nations and non-governmental organizations with 
a shared commitment to landscape scale conservation. 
 
At the end of the two-day meeting, the Council had identified several key messages and 


outcomes that will set the stage for the next steps for interacting with and supporting the LCC 
Network: 
 


Key Messages: 
 The LCC Council affirmed their role to support the LCCs and facilitate the work they do 


to support a sustainable network. 
 The LCC Council has a shared commitment to landscape scale conservation and the 


unique contribution of the LCCs. 


 


Meeting Outcomes: 
 Recognizing the Council’s desire for inclusivity across the Landscape Conservation 


Cooperative (LCC) Network, the Council reflected this in their name - LCC Council 
 The LCC Council developed a broad framework for actions to support the LCCs 


 The LCC Council selected leadership (two co-chairs): 
o Marc Miller, Director, Illinois Department of Natural Resources 
o Lynn Scarlett, Managing Director, Public Policy, The Nature Conservancy 


 Seeking to clarify its role, the LCC Council established three working groups: 


o Communications 
o Strategic Planning (jointly with the LCC Network) 
o Charter refining 


 Started to develop a better understanding of the relationship of LCCs to other landscape 


conservation efforts/initiatives 
 The LCC Council will reach out to LCCs to understand barriers to success, help address 


these barriers and to celebrate successes 
 


The Council will meet again in Spring and Summer 2014 to continue their work in 
supporting the LCC Network. 







  National Fish Habitat Board  
  March 9-10, 2014 Meeting 


  Tab 10 


 


 
Staff Recommendation/Proposal: 


 The Board should discuss what issues they would like to have represented at upcoming 
LCC Council meetings. 


 
Reference material:  


LCC Council meeting participant list 
 








 


 


COUNCIL COORDINATION COMMITTEE MEETING 


Holiday Inn, Capitol– Columbia Ballroom – Washington, D.C. 20024 


February 19-20, 2014 


http://www.nmfs.noaa.gov/sfa/management/councils/ccc/ccc.htm 


 


Agenda 
 


Wednesday, February 19, 2014 
 


Time  Discussion Item  Presenter(s)   
 


9:00 – 9:20 Welcome/Introductions  Rick Robins 


  Sam Rauch 


 


9:20 – 9:35 Remarks from leadership Eileen Sobeck 


 


9:35 – 10:05 NMFS Update Eileen Sobeck 


 NMFS FY14 Priorities 


 National Standard 1 


 NEPA 


 IG Report 


 


10:05 – 10:20  Break  


 


10:20 – 11:00 Council Report Round Robin Chairmen/EDs  


 Top three priorities for 2014 (5 min/Council) 


 


11:00 – 12:00 Management and Budget update Paul Doremus 


 FY2014: Status, Council funding  


 FY2015: Update 


 Budget Outlook 


 FY2015 and beyond --  


         Management and Administration Costs 


 


12:00 – 1:30 Lunch on your own 


 


1:30 – 2:15 Councils/Marine Fisheries Advisory Committee  Julie Morris 


 Endangered Species Act Working Group Update 


 


2:15 – 3:15 Marine Fisheries Advisory Committee  Keith Rizzardi 


 Seafood Certification Process  


 


3:15 – 3:30 Break 


 


3:30 – 4:30 Fisheries Allocation Sam Rauch 


 National SSC Tasking 


 Next steps 


  







 


 


 


 


4:30 – 5:30 National Science Programs Review Richard Merrick 


 Decision Tool for Determining Consequences Doug Lipton 


    of Management Choices 


 Stock Assessment Prioritization Rick Methot 


 


5:30 Adjourn for the day 


 


 


Thursday, February 20, 2014 


 


 


Time  Discussion Item  Presenter(s)   


 


9:00 – 10:00 Electronic Monitoring Workshop Report Dorothy Lowman 


 Major findings Mark Holliday 


 Effects on management 


 Where do we go from here?  


 


10:00 –10:15 Break 


 


10:15 – 11:00 Revision of Operational Guidelines Marian Macpherson 


 


11:00 – 12:00 Revisions to CCC Terms of Reference Rick Robins 


 Creating an National SSC 


 


12:00 – 1:30 Lunch on your own 


 


1:30 – 2:30  MSA Reauthorization All 


 Hill activity 


 HNR Committee Discussion Draft Bill 


 Follow up from October CCC Webinar/Next Steps 


 


2:30 – 2:45 Break 


 


2:45 – 3:45 NOAA’s Habitat Conservation Initiatives  Kara Meckley 


   and Partnership Opportunities 


  


3:45 – 4:30 Updates/Other Business Rick Robins  


 Annual CCC Meeting 


 Other business 


 


4:30  Adjourn meeting 








  National Fish Habitat Board  
  March 9-10, 2014 Meeting 


  Tab 11 


 


 
 


Title : Regional Fishery Management Council Coordination Committee Update 
 
Desired outcome(s):  
1) Board understanding of what the Council Coordination Committee is. 


2) Board understanding of the fish habitat related issues discussed during the February 
Committee meeting.  
 


Background:   


The reauthorization of the Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and Management (MSA) 
in 2007 established a Council Coordination Committee, or CCC.  The CCC consists of the 
chairs, vice chairs, and executive directors from each regional fishery management council 
(council), or other staff, as appropriate. This committee meets twice each year to discuss 


issues relevant to all councils, including issues related to the implementation of the MSA. 
NOAA Fisheries hosts one meeting in January or February of each year, and the second 
meeting, hosted by one of the councils, is usually held in May or June. 
 


The CCC recently met February 19
th


 and 20
th


 in Washington, DC.   The NOAA Office of 
Habitat Conservation provided an overview of NOAA’s habitat conservation initiatives and 
partnership opportunities to help Councils better understand how they can benefit and where 
they should engage.  NOAA stressed the importance and benefits of looking to the Fish 


Habitat Partnerships as a means to advance sustainable fisheries goals, and also highlighted 
opportunities for engagement.  NOAA also highlighted the NOAA Blueprint initiative, 
restoration efforts, and linkages to Landscape Conservation Cooperatives.   
 


The next meeting of the CCC will be held May 12-15 in Virginia Beach, VA.  A second 
phase of the habitat discussion will be held, focusing on options for Council engagement in 
habitat conservation and improving coordination across councils on habitat strategies.   
 
 


Staff Recommendation/Proposal: 


 The Board should consider topics that may be of mutual Board/Council interest and share 
them with the regional fishery management council Board member and the NOAA 


Fisheries Board member as appropriate.   
 
Reference material:  
February CCC agenda 








Fish Habitat Legislation Introduced In U.S. Senate 
Introduction of Bipartisan Bill Hailed by National Sportfishing and 


Conservation Groups 


 
February xx, 2014 – Washington, D.C. – Senator Ben Cardin (D-MD) and 
Senator Mike Crapo (R-ID) today introduced S. xxx the National Fish Habitat 


Conservation Act (NFHCA). The bipartisan legislation authorizes the National 
Fish Habitat Action Plan (NFHAP) – an unprecedented national partnership effort 
aimed squarely at protecting, restoring and enhancing the nation’s aquatic 
resources and fish habitat.  


 
Both Senators Cardin and Crapo sit on the Environment and Public Works 
Committee – Senator Cardin is the Chair of the Water and Wildlife 
Subcommittee. Previous versions of NFHCA have enjoyed broad bipartisan 


support in Congress, including bipartisan approval by the Environment and 
Public Works Committee in two different Congresses. The language in the bill 
introduced today includes modifications to language in earlier versions of NFHCA 
that were made in consultation with several Senators and their staffs from both 


sides of the aisle. 
 
A wide range of sportsmen’s and conservation groups has endorsed this 
legislation over the years. It is the hope of these groups and others supporting 


this historic piece of legislation that it be adopted as an amendment to the 
Bipartisan Sportsmen’s Act of 2014 (S. 1996) – a package of legislation 
introduced by Senators Kay Hagan (D-NC) and Lisa Murkowski (R-AK).  
 


“We truly appreciate the leadership of Senators Cardin and Crapo in the 
introduction of this Act,” said Gordon Robertson, Vice President of the American 
Sportfishing Association. “The National Fish Habitat Conservation Act would be a 
great addition to the Bipartisan Sportsmen’s Act of 2014 as it does not have a 


fishery habitat conservation piece of any kind and we believe the Fish Habitat Act 
would not only round out the package of bills but solidify the benefits for the 
sportsmen and women’s communities.  The Fish Habitat Conservation Act will be 
a great compliment to the existing and long standing Sport Fish Restoration Act.” 


 
 
 “The National Fish Habitat Conservation Act is a critical piece of locally driven, 
common-sense legislation that will benefit local communities, and fish and fish 


habitat,” said Jen Mock Schaeffer, Government Affairs Director for the 
Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies.  “Designed to replicate the continent’s 
preeminent and successful plan for conserving waterfowl, the North American 
Waterfowl Management Plan, the National Fish Habitat Conservation Act can 


provide the same kind of conservation benefits for fish and fish habitat across the 
country.   
 







 
“The Nature Conservancy joins our partner organizations in supporting the 
National Fish Habitat Conservation Act introduced by Senators Cardin and 


Crapo,” said Kameran Onley, Director of U.S. Government Relations for The 
Nature Conservancy.  “After many months of negotiations, we are pleased with 
this version of the legislation which reinforces the importance of the role of states 
and better addresses concerns raised by ranching and agriculture communities.  


This legislation is a model for the way conservation should occur – through 
voluntary, community-based, and from the-ground-up efforts.” 
 
“The National Fish Habitat Action Plan is already working on the ground to make 


sport fishing better, from helping farmers manage livestock to protecting brook 
trout streams in West Virginia, to enhancing growth of native vegetation, 
improving water quality on Lake Conroe, Texas, to improving stream flows for 
coho salmon through a partnership with vintners on the Russian River, California” 


said Steve Moyer, Trout Unlimited.  “The new bill will ensure that farmers, 
ranchers and other landowners have a seat at the decision-making table and will 
ensure the long term sustainability of the program.” 
 


In 2013 alone, National Fish Habitat Partnership projects opened nearly 200 
miles of waterways to fish passage.  Efforts like this implemented by grassroots-
led habitat partnerships are one of only a few ways the National Fish Habitat 
Partnership is making a difference in conserving fish habitats across the country.    


 
About the National Fish Habitat Partnership:  


Since 2006, The National Fish Habitat Partnership has been a partner in 417 
projects in 46 states benefiting fish habitat. The National Fish Habitat Partnership 


works to conserve fish habitat nationwide, leveraging federal, state, and private 
funding sources to achieve the greatest impact on fish populations through 
priority conservation projects. The national partnership implements the National 
Fish Habitat Action Plan and supports 18 regional grassroots partner 


organizations. For more information visit:  
http://fishhabitat.org/  
http://www.facebook.com/NFHAP  
https://twitter.com/FishHabitat  


http://www.scoop.it/t/fish-habitat  
 


### 
 


 
 
 



http://fishhabitat.org/

http://www.facebook.com/NFHAP

https://twitter.com/FishHabitat

http://www.scoop.it/t/fish-habitat






 


More Conservation = More Fish & Fishing 
WHAT WILL THE NATIONAL FISH 
HABITAT CONSERVATION ACT DO? 
This national legislation will 
authorize the National Fish Habitat 
Action Plan and establish the 
National Fish Habitat Board to 
provide oversight to:  
•Establish Fish Habitat Conservation 
Partnerships implementing on-the-
ground conservation practices. 
•State fish and wildlife agency 
approval of all conservation projects 
under the Action Plan.  
•Continue support of a grant 
program for fish habitat projects 
through the Department of the 
Interior. 
•Encourage grassroots driven 
partnerships consistent with the 
Plan’s goals in restoring, conserving, 
and enhancing fish habitat; improve 
fisheries and their economic 
contributions to local communities. 


The National Fish Habitat Partnership (NFHP) is an initiative to conserve 
fish habitat across the country. www.fishhabitat.org    @fishhabitat 


National Fish Habitat Conservation Act 


Supporting 
Partnerships for 
Healthier Fish, 
Healthier Fish 
Habitats 


WHY TODAY? 
The United States is home to a 
diverse array of freshwater and 
marine fish, shellfish, and other 
aquatic species. More than 3,000 
species of fish inhabit America’s 
freshwater and saltwater habitats. 
The U.S. is also home to more than 
300 million people, all depending on 
the same water that fish depend 
upon.  
 
Healthy habitats are essential for 
sustainable fish populations. 
Unfortunately, in many places across 
the country, fish and the habitats on 
which they depend are in decline. In 
1997, Congress declared that one of 
the greatest long-term threats to the 
viability of commercial and 
recreational fisheries is the 
continuing loss of marine, estuarine, 
and other fish habitats. 


CONSIDER THIS… 
According to the U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service’s 2011 National Survey of 
Fishing, Hunting and Wildlife-
Associated Recreation, over 33 million 
licensed anglers generate more than 
$46 billion in retail sales with a $115 
billion boost to the nation’s economy 
and creating jobs for more than 
828,000 people. At least 60 million 
anglers fished at some point over the 
past five years, consider themselves to 
be anglers, and rely on healthy fish 
habitat for their recreational pursuits. 
 


 


 
 
 
 
NATIONAL FISH HABITAT 


©
G


eorge A
ndrejko 


Did you know? 
 


 The United States has 181,000 
square miles of aquatic 
habitat, an area larger than the 
State of California (not 
counting marine waters 
beyond State boundaries). 


 







 NATIONAL FISH HABITAT CONSERVATION ACT: For Healthier Fish, Healthier Fish Habitats 


 


PARTNERSHIP BY THE NUMBERS  
• The direct economic value of the National Fish Habitat Partnership 
exceeds $150 million and has created more than 1,100 jobs with the $34 
million invested by the partnership since 2006  


• The National Fish Habitat Partnership has a perceived long- term value 
to local communities of $851.6 million with 19,300 jobs created – 
projection is based on habitat restored by NFHP to date 


 


 


  
PARTNERSHIPS ACROSS THE U.S. 


 


FWS Partner Local 
Investment Investment Community


Impact


Present Total Return
Value of on Investment
Future in Restoration
Benefits


$0


$200


$851M
$800


$600


$400


$1,000


$16M $40M
$145M


$996M


National Fish Habitat Partnership Value
(Dollars in Millions)


 


 


 
National Fish Habitat 
Partnership Successes 
> Completed 1st ever national 
assessment of Fish Habitat 


>Formed 18 Fish Habitat 
Partnerships covering all 50 
states 


> Conducted 341 conservation 
projects in 46 states 


> Highlighted 70 key projects 
through “Waters to Watch” 
initiative, tracking project 
progress and improvement 


> Created a map and data web 
tool analyzing conditions of 
habitat through USGS  


> signed MOU implementing 
the National Fish Habitat 
Action Plan between the U.S. 
Departments of the Interior, 
Commerce and Agriculture 


 


   


Boone River Watershed        
Oxbow Restoration, Iowa  


 “Water to Watch” 2012 


■    Return on investment totals nearly 18:1 





		More Conservation = More Fish & Fishing






  National Fish Habitat Board  
  March 9-10, 2014  Meeting 


  Tab 12 


 


 
 


Title : Legislation Update 
 
Desired outcome(s):  


 Provide an update on the status of the National Fish Habitat Conservation Act  
 
Background:   


There is an effort to have the National Fish Habitat Conservation Act introduced in the 
Senate in the 113


th
 Congress.  There has been an updated legislative fact sheet created and a 


draft press release was created should the bill be introduced.  
 


 
Reference material:  
NFHCA Fact Sheet, Draft Press Release (Tab 14) 


 








  National Fish Habitat Board  
  March 9-10, 2014  Meeting 


  Tab 13 


 


 
 


Title : Joint Session with the State Fisheries Administrators  
 
Desired outcome(s):  
1) Increased understanding of state fish habitat activities. 


2) Shared understanding of how NFHP supports state needs.   
3) Shared understanding of NFHP strengthens and concerns (state perspective). 
4) Strengthen relationships between state programs and NFHP. 
 


Background:   
State fisheries agencies have primary responsibility for management of resident fisheries 
programs.  Strong commitment and support for fish habitat is integral to their fisheries 
programs.  Numerous states have major fish habitat programs, and they contribute personnel 


and resources to work in partnership with a wide array of entities, including Fish Habitat 
Partnerships.   
 
State agency personnel have been active in formation and implementation of Fish Habitat 


Partnerships.  State fisheries program administrators wish to encourage timely discussions 
and exchanges of information on issues that impact fishery management programs and 
fishery users.  Participants will inform the board on state fish habitat efforts, discuss strengths 
and concerns, and will engage the board in strengthening relationships between state 


programs and NFHP.  This is the first Board meeting with the state fisheries administrators.   
 
Discussion will include presentations from Jeff Boxrucker from the Reservoir Fish Habitat 
Partnership and Tim Birdsong, Texas Parks and Wildlife Department. 


 
Staff Recommendation/Proposal: 


 The Board should look for and discuss opportunities to align priorities and identify 
ways in which the Board could take action to address challenges in partnership with 


the state fisheries administrators.  


 Consider discussing NFHP’s possible contributions to the fish component of 2015 
State Wildlife Action Plan revisions  
 


 
Reference material:  
N/A 








 


 


 


National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 


 March 9-10 2014 Draft Agenda and Board Book Tabs  


Downtown Sheraton (Room: Governors Square 10) 


Denver, Colorado 


Conference line:  866-560-0760, Passcode: 2832957  


Web link:  


https://mmancusa.webex.com/mmancusa/j.php?ED=238908317&UID=0&PW=NNWZhZWRhM2Jh&RT=M


iM2  
 


Sunday, 
March 9 
 
1:00-1:15 
 
 
 
 
1:15-1:30  
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
Welcome and Introductions 
 
 
 
 
Housekeeping 
Desired outcomes: 
 Board action to approve draft agenda and draft January 


meeting minutes. 


 Board review of future meeting schedules and format. 
- Summer Board call / video conference 
- November Board meeting in conjunction with the 


Restore Americas Estuaries / The Coastal Society 
Conference 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Tab 1 
 


 
 
 
Bob Broscheid 
(Director, 
Colorado Parks 
and Wildlife) 
 
Kelly Hepler 
(Board  Chair-AK 
Dept. of Fish 
and Game) 


1:30-1:45 Chair Updates 
Desired outcome: 


 Discussion on NFHP Budget - USFWS update on 
cooperative agreements.  


 Discussion on process for appointing a new Chair. 
 


 Kelly Hepler 
(Board  Chair-AK 
Dept. of Fish 
and Game) 


1:45-2:30 Report on the Performance Evaluation of the Board 
Desired outcome:  


 Board awareness of results.  
 Board discussion on next steps for action. 


Tab 2 Cecilia Lewis 
(Board Staff,   
FWS) & Ryan 
Roberts (Board 
Staff, AFWA) 


 
2:30-3:30 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
Corporate Engagement Strategy Update 
Desired outcome: 
 Board action to approve the corporate engagement 


strategy. 


 Board action to approve draft NFHP core values. 
 Overview of crowdsourcing mechanism to raise funds.  


 
 
 
 
 


 
Tab 3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
Tom Champeau 
(Board member, 
SEAFWA), Joe 
Starinchak (FWS), 
Chris Horton 
(Board member, 
CSA) & Ryan 
Roberts (Board 
Staff, AFWA), 
John LeCoq 
(Fishpond) 
 



https://mmancusa.webex.com/mmancusa/j.php?ED=238908317&UID=0&PW=NNWZhZWRhM2Jh&RT=MiM2

https://mmancusa.webex.com/mmancusa/j.php?ED=238908317&UID=0&PW=NNWZhZWRhM2Jh&RT=MiM2





 


 


 


 
 
 
3:30-3:45 
 
3:45-4:15 


 
 
 
Break 
 
Communications Committee Update 
Desired outcome: 


 Informational update on NFHP awards. 
 Informational update on 10 Waters to Watch. 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
Tab 4 


 
 
 
 
 
Ryan Roberts 
(Board Staff, 
AFWA) 


4:15-4:45 Science and Data Committee Update 
Desired outcomes: 


 Informational update on 2015 assessment 
 Informational update on project effectiveness 


 Informational update on Committee business 
 


Tab 5 
 
 


Gary Whelan 
(Board Staff, MI 
Dept. of Natural 
Resources) & 
Andrea Ostroff 
(Board Staff, 
USGS) 
 


 
 
4:45-5:15 
 
 
 
 
5:30-7:30  
 
 
 
Monday, 
March  10th 
 


 
 
Assessment of Habitat in the Great Plains 
Desired outcome: 


 Informational update 
 


 
Board Reception, Denver Sheraton – Sponsored by Western 
Native Trout Initiative and Fishpond 


 
 
 


 
 
Steve Krentz 
(Great Plains 
FHP 
Coordinator) 


8:30-9:15 
 
 
 
 
9:15-9:45 


Consideration of the Southeast Alaska Candidate FHP for 
Formal Recognition 
Desired outcome: 


 Board action to approve or disapprove 
 
Proposal: Federal Agency Fish and Fish-habitat Related 
Grant Program Review  
Desired outcomes: 
 Informational update on draft proposal 


 Discussion on next steps for requesting a federal grant 
program review 
 


Tab 6 
 
 
 
 
Tab 7 


Debbie Hart 
(Coordinator) 
 
 
 
Stan Allen 
(Board member, 
PSMFC) 
 


    
9:45-10:00 
 
10:00-12:00 


Break 
 
Joint Session with FWS Fisheries Assistant Regional 
Directors 
Desired outcome: 


 
 
Tab 8 


 


Kelly Hepler 
(Board  Chair, 
AK Dept. of  Fish 


 


 







 


 


 


 Informational update on FWS funding allocation. 


 Discussion on NFHP’s role in the FWS strategic plan. 
 


 Discussion on strengthening FWS NFHP 
communications. 


 Discussion on broadening NFHP support beyond FWS 
funds 


 Discussion on future group engagement with federal 
agency regional leadership. 


 


and Game) & 
David Hoskins 
(FWS Asst. 
Director, Fish 
and Aquatic 
Conservation) 
 


12:00-1:30  
 
1:30-2:00 


Lunch  
 
501(c) 3 Update 
Desired outcome:  


 Informational update on documents in support of the 
formulation of a 501(c)3.   
 


 
 
Tab 9 
 
 
 


 
 
Matt Menashes 
(Board Staff,  
AFWA), Steve 
Moyer (Board 
Member, TU) & 
Mike Andrews 
(TNC, Board 
Vice-chair) 


 
2:00-2:15 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2:15- 2:30 


 
Landscape Conservation Cooperatives National Council 
Meeting  
Desired outcome: 


 Informational update on the inaugural LCC National 
Council meeting that occurred on February 4th and 5th. 


 
 
Regional Fishery Management Council Coordination 
Committee Update 
Desired outcome: 


 Informational update on the February Council 
Coordination Committee meeting. 


 


 
Tab 10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Tab 11 


 
Mike Andrews 
 (TNC, Board 
Vice-chair) 
 
 
 
 
Chris Moore 
(Board member,  
MAFMC) 


 
2:30-3:00 
 
 


 
Legislation Update 
Desired outcome 


 Informational update on the status of NFHP legislation. 
 


 


 
Tab 12 


 
Gordon 
Robertson 
(Board member, 
ASA) 
 


3:00-3:15 
 
3:15-4:45 


Break 
 
Joint Session with State Fisheries Administrators 
Desired outcome: 


 Discussion on State fish habitat activities. 


 Discussion on how NFHP supports State needs.   


 Discussion on NFHP strengthens and concerns from 
a State perspective. 


 Discussion on ways to strengthen relationships 
between state programs and NFHP.  


 
 
Tab 13 


 
 
Kelly Helper 
(Board  Chair-AK 
Dept. of Fish 
and Game), 
Mike Stone 
(WAFWA) 


   







 


 


 


4:45-5:00 
 
 
 
 


Meeting wrap up  Kelly Hepler (Board  
Chair-AK Dept. of Fish 
and Game) 


   
 
 


 
 


   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


    
   


 
 
 
 
 


 


 
  
  
  
  


 


 


 


 








 
 


Meetings of the National Fish Habitat Board 2006-2015 Tab 1 


 


Proposed Schedule of Future Board Meetings 2014-2015 


 
Year Date Location Comments 


2014 


March 9-10 
(Sun-Mon) 


Denver, CO 
Meet w/ State fish chiefs + FWS 
ARDs 


June 25 (Wed) Teleconference / web conference Replaces summer in-person meeting 


Week of Nov 3 Washington DC area 
Held in conjunction w/ RAE Summit 


at National Harbor in Maryland 


2015 


January 14 
(Wed) 


Teleconference Annual budget & priorities 


March 3-4 


(Tue-Wed) 
Washington DC area The Nature Conservancy 


June 24 (Wed) Teleconference / web conference  


October 20-21 


(Tue-Wed) 
California or Nevada  


 


 


Record of Past Board Meetings -2006 -2013 


 
Year Date Location Facility 


2006 
September 22 Aspen, Colorado Hotel 


November 16 Washington, DC Hall of States 


2007 


January 16 Teleconference  


March 1-2 Washington, DC Environmental Protection Agency 


June 6-7 Washington, DC Commerce Department 


October 2-3 Arlington, VA Hotel 


2008 


February 20-21 St. Petersburg, FL Tampa Bay Watch 


May 13-14 Arlington, VA The Nature Conservancy 


October 7-8 Arlington, VA The Nature Conservancy 


2009 


March 4-5 Harrisburg, PA Pennsylvania Fish & Boat Commission 


June 25, 2009 Leesburg, VA National Conference Center 


October 7-8 Arlington, VA The Nature Conservancy 


2010 


January 15 Teleconference  


March 3-4 Memphis, TN Ducks Unlimited 


June 9-10 Silver Spring, MD NOAA headquarters 


August 25 Teleconference  


October 12-14 Portland, OR Columbia River Intertribal Fisheries  Commission 


2011 


January 13 Teleconference  


March 11 Teleconference  


April 12-13 Arlington, VA The Nature Conservancy 


July 26-27 Madison, WI Hotel 


October 19-20 Albuquerque, NM FWS Regional Office 


2012 
January 12 Teleconference  


March 1 Teleconference  







 
 


Meetings of the National Fish Habitat Board 2006-2015 Tab 1 
April 17-18 Arlington, VA The Nature Conservancy 


July 10-11 Portland, ME Hotel 


October 16-17 Ridgedale, MO Big Cedar Lodge 


2013 


January 16 Teleconference  


February 26-27 Arlington, VA FWS headquarters 


April 15 Teleconference  


June 25-26 Salt Lake City, UT Utah State Capitol 


October 22-23 Charleston, SC NOAA Coastal Services Center 


2014 January 15 Teleconference Annual budget & priorities 


 


Total:  33 (in-person and teleconference) meetings held to date 








  National Fish Habitat Board 
  March 9 - 10, 2014 
  Tab 1 


 
 
National Fish Habitat Board Call -  January 15, 2014  
Members present: 
Leroy Young (NEAFWA)                 Stan Allen (PSMFC)                  
Mike Stone (WAFWA)                    Sam Rauch (NMFS)                         Chris Horton (CSF) 
Chris Moore (MAFMC)                    David Hoskins (FWS)                      Stan Moberly (AFS) 
Krystyna Wolniakowski (NFWF)    Mike Andrews (TNC Vice-chair)   Steve Moyer (TU)  
Brad Gentner (CCA)                         Gordon Robertson (ASA)              Tom Champeau (SEAFWA) 
Doug Boyd (SFBPC)                          Ellen Gilinsky (EPA)                        Chris Horton (CSF) 
 
Members absent: 
 Fred Matt (NAFWS), Ron Regan (AFWA) 
 
Motions approved: 


 October Board Meeting Minutes Approved  
 


 Continue Board Operations and Revisit the 2014 Budget Based on Updated FWS Budget Figures  
 Staff provided an overview of changes from the draft budget presented at the Charleston 


meeting.  Noteworthy changes included the amounts for reallocating MSCG funds to FHP needs, 
the 2013-2014 carryover, a reallocation of coordination line funds to a FHP in person meeting in 
conjunction with the RAE TCS conference in November in Washington DC, additional funds 
moved to support effectiveness measures work, and allocation to communications for 
registration and booth space at the RAE TCS Conference.  


 Additional information regarding the FWS source funding was provided to the Board.  Noting that 
the amount of FY14 funds is uncertain, there is the possibility that there may be additional 
money available that could be redeployed.  This is in addition to FY13 funds that FWS has 
committed to add the agreement with Michigan State University.  


 Discussion focused on what the best use of this money would be.  It was proposed by the FWS 
that the money be applied to the FHPs under the new FWS allocation methodology.  Concern 
was raised by some Board members that taking this approach would affect the science and data 
l ine. 


 The Board deferred the decision on how to allocate funds and the Board budget until the March 
meeting when the outcome of the congressional budgeting process will be clearer. 


 One non-Board member meeting participant indicated that it will be important for the Board to 
bring the FHPs into the discussion on what to do with these funds.  
 


 Board Chair Authorized to Appoint a Subcommittee to Assist in the Review Process 
 The FWS project allocation process is performance based and competitive, and includes an 


opportunity for the NFHP Board to provide feedback.   
 The FWS provided a brief overview of the process, and Board members and call participants 


provided feedback.  Comments and recommendations included:  
- Appreciation for including the Board and developing an equitable process.  
- For criteria where percentages are l isted, consider using qualifying language of “at least” 
- Requests for feedback provide to FHPs so they know how to improve. 
- Requests for persons outside of the FWS to assist with scoring.   
- Concerns that FHPs large in size and scope will be at a disadvantage. 
- Clarification on how to apply. 
- Recommendation to collect feedback on the criteria.  
- Clarification that onshore and offshore species are important, and that there appears to be 







  National Fish Habitat Board 
  March 9 - 10, 2014 
  Tab 1 


a fair amount of latitude for all trust resources.  
- The Board should work with the Sport fishing and Boating Partnership Council during their 


piece of the evaluation. 
 It was clarified that the FWS allocation process only applies to the 18 existing FHPs.  The service 


wants to implement, learn, and adapt as necessary, and that this could be revisited.  
 The Board passed a motion authorizing the Chair to appoint a subcommittee of Board members 


and staff to assist in FHP review.  
Updates and discussions: 


 501c3 - Changes to the articles of incorporation and bylaws were presented to the Board following up on 
a Board request made at the October Board meeting in Charleston.  The changes included clarifying the 
role of the 501c3 and specifically including the NFHP Board in the articles of incorporation.  Staff 
discussed the recommended process for appointing members to the 501c3 Board of Directors, and fielded 
questions from Board members on the  Board of Directors makeup and relationship to the NFHP Board in 
terms of reporting.  Staff indicated that the AFWA Executive Committee needs to be briefed on the 
recommended appointment process, and this will happen at the North American meeting held in Denver 
in March.   


 Corporate Engagement Strategy – Progress is being made on the strategy and will be shared with the 
Board in advance of the March meeting.  John LeCoq is working closely with the group to help the FHPs 
assist with branding as well as with exploring the potential for raising money for the Partnership directly 
from an online consumer checkout.  It was indicated that companies want to support fish habitat, but do 
not know how.  The engagement strategy and draft NFHP core values will be discussed in March.  Board 
member Mike Stone asked that the core values be condensed and synthesized in order to evoke more 
feeling.  


Action items:   
 AFWA to synthesize 2014 Board priorities into one document and share with the Board.  
 Board members to send comments on the allocation process to Tom Busiahn. 
 Board members to send comments on the draft NFHP Core Values to Ryan Roberts.  
 Board members to send comments on the 501c3 Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws to Matt Menashes. 
 The corporate engagement strategy will revise the strategy and share with the Board.  


Future Board meetings: 
 March 9th and 10th 2014, Denver Colorado  
 Late June or July 2014 (date TBD), web or video conference 
 November 2014, Washington DC (in conjunction with the 7th National Summit on Coastal and Estuarine 


Restoration) 
Board approved documents:  None 
Additional attendees:  
Ryan Roberts, AFWA                    Matt Menashes, AFWA                  Heidi  Keuler, FWS/FFP 
Tom Busiahn, FWS                        Steve Perry, EBTJV                          Debbie Hart (SEAFHP) 
Maureen Gallagher, FWS            Cecilia Lewis, FWS                           David Lawrence, NFWF 
Emily Greene, ACFHP                   Chris Meaney, NMFS                      Scott Robinson, SARP      
David Wigglesworth FWS            Karin Eldridge, FWS                        Brian Elkington, FWS  
Tripp Boltin, FWS                          Doug Besler, EBTJV                         Kayla Barrett, FWS/DFHP 
Callie McMunigal, FWS                Steven Krentz, GPFHP                    Jeff Boxrucker, RFHP 
Joe Starinchak, (FWS)                   Johnny LeCoq, (Fishpond)            Julie Devers, FWS/ACFHP  
Mike Weimer, FWS                      Umi Muawanah, FWS 


 








  National Fish Habitat Board  
  March 9-10, 2014  Meeting 


  Tab 1 
 


Page 1 of 3 
 


Proposed Meeting Options for the June 2014 Board Meeting 
 


Background 
 
The Board will transition to two in-person meetings and two remote meetings, annually.  In an 
effort to encourage full engagement of meeting participants and, potentially, increase 


participation in remote meetings, Board staff submits the following meeting options for Board 
consideration and decision.  The format chosen by the Board will be used to deliver the June 
2014 Board meeting.   
 


Meeting Options  
 
Conference Call 
 


Similar to the Board’s annual conference call in January, the June Board meeting would 
be held via conference line.  All participants would join the meeting by dialing into a 
dedicated conference line to listen in on Board meeting proceedings.  The Board and 
meeting participants would interact verbally (i.e. provide information, feedback, and ask 


or answer questions verbally). 
 
Pros: Easy to use, low to no cost to the participant, no special equipment needed 
Cons:  Limited interaction (audio only); not ideal for meetings that exceed 1-2 hours in 


length 
 
Conference line and WebEx 
 


Adding the use of WebEx to the conference call allows the Board members and 
participants to view Board book materials like presentations and memorandums in real-
time.  The Board has used this method ant several in-person Board meetings as a way to 
include Board members and participants that are unable to travel to the meeting venue in-


person.  Providing participants with visuals and material to reference while on the 
conference call gives participants and may spur participation and  


 
Pros:  Displaying documents and presentations in real-time gives meeting participants a 


point of reference as they follow along with the meeting discussions; presentations 
and meeting documents can be viewed from any internet connected device 
including mobile phones; low to no cost for participants 


Cons :  Participant interaction is limited to audio via phone and document sharing via the 


web; not ideal for meetings that exceed 1-2 hours 
 
Virtual Meeting (using Adobe Connect or similar software) 
 


In addition to audio via conference line or voice over IP (VoIP) and real-time video, the 
interactive tools built into the software can be worked into the meeting format to engage 







  National Fish Habitat Board  
  March 9-10, 2014  Meeting 


  Tab 1 
 


Page 2 of 3 
 


participant engagement.  Available tools (called pods) that would be useful during the 
Board meeting include polling/voting, Q&A, note taking, file share, whiteboard, web links 


pods.  Participant chat can also be used to encourage further dialog during the meeting.  
Some agenda items lend themselves to group discussion; however, addressing the topic or 
completing an action item with a group of 20 or more people may not be the most efficient 
method.  For these agenda items, the Board can use ‘virtual’ breakout groups to facilitate 


focused brainstorming and discussion.         
 


Pros:  Virtual breakout rooms; audio/video can be recorded for sharing; 3-4 hours 
of agenda topics can be accomplished and incorporating video and 


participatory tools can help minimize meeting fatigue 
Cons:  Presenters and participants must be willing to familiarize themselves with 


the virtual tools and actively use them during the meeting to receive 
maximum benefit  


 
VTC (Video Teleconference) 
 


Face-to-face Board meetings have been invaluable and VTC is the next best thing to 


meeting in-person.  Participants communicate ‘face-to-face’ (via video) as if they are all in 
the same room.  VTC offers participants high quality video and audio.     
 


Pros:  Meeting can be recorded to shared later via (via the NFHP website and social 


media like Facebook and YouTube); 3-4 hours of agenda topics can be 
accomplished   


Cons:  Requires that presenters and participants have special equipment and 
software, most participants may not have access to (or the ability to obtain) 


the required equipment or software 
 
 







  National Fish Habitat Board  
  March 9-10, 2014  Meeting 


  Tab 1 
 


Page 3 of 3 
 


Matrix of Meeting Options 


 


  Ease of Use 


Communication 


Method 
Required Equipment  


Computer 


Download 


Required 


Set-up/Time Investment 


Audio Visual Participants  Presenters Participant Presenter 


Conference 


Call 
Easy X   Phone Phone No None None 


WebEx and 


Conference 


Combo 


Easy to 


Intermediate 
X X 


Phone, internet 


connected device, 


microphone (optional) 


Phone, internet connected 


device, microphone 


(optional) 


Yes 
None to 


Minimal 
Minimal  


Adobe 


Connect 


Easy to 


Intermediate 
X X 


Phone, internet 


connected device, 


microphone (optional), 


webcam (optional) 


Web camera, phone, internet 


connected device, and 


microphone (optional) 


No 
None to 


Minimal 
Moderate 


VTC Advanced X X 


Required software, 


camera, internet 
connection 


Call Server, 


Video Endpoint, 


Multipoint Conference 


Unit (MCU), 
Gateways, 


and an Ethernet switch 


No 
Moderate to 


Extensive 


Moderate 


to 
Extensive 








TCS LOGO


(NEEDED)


Inspiring Action, Creating Resilience


7th National Summit on Coastal and Estuarine Restoration
and


24th Biennial Meeting of The Coastal Society


November 1-5, 2014 
GAYLORD NATIONAL CONVENTION CENTER • WASHINGTON, D.C.


www.estuaries.org/summit
30% RECYCLED 


CONTENT


Summit Prospectus







PAGE 2   SUMMIT PROSPECTUS   INSPIRING ACTION, CREATING RESILIENCE    WASHINGTON, D.C.   NOVEMBER 1-5, 2014


Benefi ts for


SPONSORS & EXHIBITORS


The


GAYLORD NATIONAL CONVENTION CENTER


Inspiring Action, Creating 
Resilience is the only 
national summit focused 
on the goals and practices 
of coastal and estuarine 
restoration and management. 
Estuaries and coasts are an 
important part of America’s 
economy, history, and 
living culture. The fi ve-day 
summit will explore cutting-
edge issues in restoration 
and coastal management, 
and will be comprised of a 


restoration event, fi eld 
sessions, plenary sessions, 
expert presentations, 
special evening events, 
workshops, a poster hall, 
and the nation’s only 
coastal exposition hall.


ABOUT  THE 


SUMMIT


The Summit will be held at the 
Gaylord National Convention 
Center November 1-5, 2014, just 
minutes outside of Washington, D.C. 
Renowned for its natural beauty, 
legendary history, and cultural 
offerings, Washington, D.C. will set 
the dramatic background for this 
premier event.


Become a


SPONSOR


Sponsorship of the 2014 Summit provides an exceptional opportunity 
to showcase your organization’s products, services, and commitment 
to coastal and estuarine habitat restoration. Your sponsorship 


• Reach more than 1,000 participants, 
including decision-makers from 
government agencies, businesses, 
foundations, and non-profi t, academic 
institutions, tribal and grassroots 
organizations;


• Increase national awareness of your 
organization through our websites, 
newsletters (8,000 readers), registration 
brochure (20,000 recipients), and Summit 
program (more than 1,000 participants); 


• Demonstrate your organization’s 
commitment to best practices in the 
coastal restoration and management fi elds; 
from planning and design to monitoring 
and evaluation, and from science and 
practice to partnerships and collaboration. 


As Sponsors and Exhibitors of the 2014 Summit, you will: 


“This Conference has grown to 


become the foremost opportunity 


to connect with leaders in the 


coastal restoration community 


throughout the United States.  


It uniquely combines national 


policy perspectives, critical 


scientifi c information and what 


it takes to accomplish local, 


sustainable restoration. By 


bringing together scientists, non-


profi ts, public agencies, and citizen 


conservationists, RAE provides a 


special opportunity for each of us to 


both broaden perspectives and stock 


our conservation tool boxes.” 


—Eric Schwaab
NOAA – National Marine Fisheries Service


Cover art: John Brandon Sills, “Stalking Heron,” 
JOHNBRANDONSILLS.COM


will open the door 
to a focused, richly 
diverse, and highly 
infl uential group of 
coastal restoration and 
management  experts.


If you are interested in just 
exhibiting, please see the top of 
page 9 for more information.







PAGE 3   SUMMIT PROSPECTUS   INSPIRING ACTION, CREATING RESILIENCE    WASHINGTON, D.C.   NOVEMBER 1-5, 2014


General


SPONSORSHIP OPPORTUNITIES


Lead Sponsor ($50,000 and above) 
• Most prominent listing of corporate logo in all 


Summit printed materials and on-site at event;
• Verbal and visual recognition at Summit plenary 


sessions;
• 1 full-page advertisement in the Summit program;
• Most prominent and complimentary 10’ x 20’ 


exhibit booth space;
• 8 complimentary Summit registrations;
• Recognition and organizational logo hyperlink on 


RAE’s Summit website and TCS’s website.


Principal Sponsor ($25,000 - $49,999) 
• Very prominent listing of corporate logo in all 


Summit printed materials and on-site at event;
• Verbal and visual recognition at Summit plenary 


sessions;
• 1 full-page advertisement in the Summit program;
• Very prominent and complimentary 10’ x 10’ exhibit 


booth space;
• 5 complimentary Summit registrations;
• Recognition and organizational logo hyperlink on 


RAE’s Summit website and TCS’s website.


Executive Sponsor ($10,000 - $24,999) 
• Prominent listing of corporate logo in all Summit 


printed materials and on-site at event;
• Visual recognition at Summit plenary sessions;
• 1 half-page advertisement in the Summit program;
• Prominent and complimentary 10’ x 10’ exhibit 


booth space;
• 3 complimentary Summit registrations;
• Recognition and organizational logo hyperlink on 


RAE’s Summit website and TCS’s website.


Patron ($5,000 - $9,999) 
• Prominent listing of corporate logo in all Summit 


printed materials and on-site at event;
• 1 quarter-page advertisement in the Summit 


program;
• Complimentary 8’ x 10’ exhibit booth space;
• 2 complimentary Summit registrations;
• Recognition and organizational logo hyperlink on 


RAE’s Summit website and TCS’s website.


Benefactor ($2,500 - $4,999)  
• Listing in all Summit printed materials and on-


site at event;
• 1 quarter-page advertisement in the Summit 


program;
• Complimentary 8’ x 10’ exhibit booth space;
• 1 complimentary Summit registration;
• Recognition on RAE’s Summit website and 


TCS’s website.


Supporter ($1,800 - $2,499) 
• Listing in all Summit materials and on-site at 


event;
• Complimentary 8’ x 10’ exhibit booth space;
• 1 complimentary Summit registration;
• Recognition on RAE’s Summit website and 


TCS’s website.


Contributor (in-kind, donation)
• Complimentary listing in all Summit printed 


materials;
• Recognition on RAE’s Summit website and 


TCS’s website.







PAGE 4   SUMMIT PROSPECTUS   INSPIRING ACTION, CREATING RESILIENCE    WASHINGTON, D.C.   NOVEMBER 1-5, 2014


Exclusive


SPONSORSHIP OPPORTUNITIES


Community-based Restoration Project ($35,000)
The Summit’s community-based restoration project will take 
place in Chesapeake Bay on Saturday, November 1st, and 
engage more than 150 volunteers, partners, and local leaders 
in a hands-on event, helping to restore coastal habitat in the 
bay. 


Sponsorship benefi ts include: 


• All benefi ts at the Executive Sponsor level;
• Verbal acknowledgement during the event;
• Visual recognition during event, such as banners, 


posters, and display;
• Employee participation; 
• Opportunity to address the project participants during 


event.


Summit Celebration ($35,000)
All registered participants are invited to attend our famous 
Summit Celebration during Tuesday evening of the Summit. 
Guests will have the opportunity to enjoy the fi nest local 
cuisine, live music, and gather with old and new friends—
while celebrating our coasts, cultures and spirit. 


Sponsorship benefi ts include:


• All benefi ts at the Executive Sponsor level;
• Verbal/Visual acknowledgement during the event; 
• Opportunity to address the group; 
• Five guest tickets.


“RAE’s 2012 Conference 
in Tampa showcased a 
rich mixture of traditional 
environmental restoration 
applications and innovative 
cutting-edge concepts and 
techniques. The biennial RAE 
conferences continue to provide 
an effective ‘one-stop’ venue 
for scientists, managers and 
environmental restoration 
practitioners to share and 
learn, and have a great time 
doing so!” 


—Holly Greening, Tampa Bay Estuary Program


Coastal Awards Luncheon ($35,000)
At a special plated luncheon for all Summit 
attendees, Restore America’s Estuaries and The 
Coastal Society will take time to honor those who 
have made a signifi cant commitment to coastal 
restoration and management. 


Sponsorship recognition includes:


• All benefi ts at the Executive Sponsor level;
• Visual/Verbal acknowledgement during the 


luncheon;
• Opportunity to address the lunch audience;
• Invitation for fi ve guests to attend the event. 







PAGE 5   SUMMIT PROSPECTUS   INSPIRING ACTION, CREATING RESILIENCE    WASHINGTON, D.C.   NOVEMBER 1-5, 2014


Exclusive


SPONSORSHIP OPPORTUNITIES


(Continued)


Presidents’ Opening Reception ($25,000)
The presidents’ opening reception will kick off the 
offi cial opening of the Expo/Poster Hall on Sunday 
evening, November 2nd. While exploring the Summit’s 
Expo and Poster Hall, Summit participants will network 
with fellow colleagues and enjoy light appetizers, 
refreshments, and live music. 


Sponsorship recognition includes: 


• All benefi ts at the Executive Sponsor level;
• Visual acknowledgement during the reception;


• Five complimentary evening passes to attend event.


Climate Partner ($25,000)
Since 2006, RAE has been committed to organizing 
a Summit that is climate-neutral.  RAE and TCS are 
continuing this commitment with the 2014 Summit and 
will offset 100% of the greenhouse gasses emitted due to 
Summit activities. 


Sponsorship recognition includes: 


• All benefi ts at the Executive Sponsor level;
• Verbal acknowledgement during the Opening 


Plenary;
• Visual acknowledgement in the program;
• Signage on-site at the event; 
• Profi le story in RAE Newsletter.


“What I like about the RAE 
Conference is the range of interests 
and experts that are brought 
together to discuss solutions for 
coastal challenges.  Environmental 
groups, agencies, scientists, private 
industry, engineers, educators are 
prominent and engaged in the 
dialogue. The networking that 
takes place is very apparent and 
effective.”


—Timothy Feather, CDM Smith


Summit Tote Bag ($10,000) 
The Summit tote bag has become a sought-after item at our 
Summits, thanks in part to the beautiful coastal painting 
that adorns one side. Our eco-friendly bag will be used for 
years to come at the grocery store, beach visits, and during 
leisure travel. 


Sponsorship recognition includes:


• All benefi ts at the Patron level;
• Organizational logo on one side of the tote bag;
• Visual acknowledgment in the Summit program;
• Opportunity to place company trinkets inside; 
• 50 complimentary bags for your company. 







PAGE 6   SUMMIT PROSPECTUS   INSPIRING ACTION, CREATING RESILIENCE    WASHINGTON, D.C.   NOVEMBER 1-5, 2014


Exclusive


SPONSORSHIP OPPORTUNITIES


(Continued)


Sofa Lounge(s) 
($10,000 each, two opportunities)
Inside the Expo/Poster Hall, we will provide small, 
intimate lounges for our Summit attendees to relax, 
network, and work in.  


Sponsorship recognition includes:


• All benefi ts at the Patron level;
• Strategic placement of company’s marketing 


materials inside the Sofa Lounge(s);
• Placard placement, acknowledging the organization 


as the sponsor of the Sofa Lounge(s).


Monday and Wednesday Plenary 
($15,000 each)
The Summit plenary sessions will provide a rich and 
diverse mix of insights and energy to the coastal 
restoration movement.  Speakers will represent a 
number of sectors that we collaborate with, including 
government, business, non-profi t organizations, 
foundations, universities, native American tribes, and 
grassroots associations. 


Sponsorship recognition includes: 


• All benefi ts at the Patron level;
• Verbal/Visual acknowledgement in the program 


and during the respective plenary. 


Field Sessions ($15,000)
During Sunday, November 2nd, registered participants 
will take part in many fi eld sessions in and around 
Chesapeake Bay, learning about local restoration 
projects, best practices, and collaboration 
experiences.  


Sponsorship recognition includes: 


• All benefi ts at the Patron level;
• Verbal/Visual acknowledgement in the program 


and during the Field Sessions. 


Poster Hall ($10,000)
More than 150 posters will be presented over four 
days inside the Expo/Poster Hall


Sponsorship recognition includes:


• All benefi ts at the Patron level.
• Opportunity to hang company banner inside 


the Poster Hall.
• Acknowledgement inside the Summit Program 


booklet.


“RAE brings together a wide 
range of technical experts and 
topics relevant to coastal issues. 
As a Global Practice Director 
for Natural Resources Planning 
& Management, it is important 
for both me and my company to 
stay abreast of and contribute to 
leading innovations and trends in 
this important arena. Sponsorship 
of RAE enables us to do just that.”     


—Stephen Petron, Ph.D, CH2M HILL







PAGE 7   SUMMIT PROSPECTUS   INSPIRING ACTION, CREATING RESILIENCE    WASHINGTON, D.C.   NOVEMBER 1-5, 2014


Exclusive


SPONSORSHIP OPPORTUNITIES


(Continued)


Poster Happy Hour ($5,000)
During the Poster Happy Hour, presenters mingle 
with Summit attendees, sharing their projects and 
experiences, while also networking with colleagues and 
clients in the Expo/Poster Hall.  


Sponsorship recognition includes: 


• All benefi ts at the Benefactor level;
• Visual acknowledgement in the program and 


during the Poster Happy Hour. 


Wi-Fi Hotspots ($10,000 each, four 
opportunities)
Providing complimentary internet and charging stations 
along with limited seating for attendees inside the 
Summit’s Expo and Poster Hall, while being a signifi cant 
driver of traffi c to your nearby booth inside the 
Convention Center. 


Sponsorship recognition includes:


• All benefi ts at the Patron level;
• Placement of organizational logo at sponsored Wi-


Fi Hotspot;
• Location of your 8’ x 10’ exhibit booth nearby;
• Strategic placement of company’s trinkets and 


signage at Wi-Fi Hotspot;
• Placement of organizational materials on the 


desktop/screensaver of each computer securely 
placed at the Wi-Fi Hotspot.


ePosters ($15,000 - $20,000)
Several of the posters presented inside the Expo/Poster 
Hall will have the opportunity to be showcased on LCD 
TVs in digital and interactive formats.


Sponsorship recognition includes:


• All benefi ts at the Executive Sponsor level.
• Signage in and around the ePosters.
• Acknowledgement inside the Summit Program 


booklet. 


“As a current coastal management 
program director and former 
wetland restoration manager, 
I am really encouraged by this 
new collaboration for the 2014 
Summit. By building relationships 
and advancing our collective 
knowledge-base across disciplines, 
we will be better equipped as a 
broader coastal community to 
address emerging issues of our 
coasts and oceans.” 


—Bruce Carlisle
Massachusetts Coastal Zone Management







PAGE 8   SUMMIT PROSPECTUS   INSPIRING ACTION, CREATING RESILIENCE    WASHINGTON, D.C.   NOVEMBER 1-5, 2014


Continental Breakfast(s)
($5,000 for one or $12,000 for three)
During Monday, Tuesday, and Wednesday mornings 
of the Summit, attendees will join together inside 
the Expo/Poster Hall to enjoy a complimentary 
continental breakfast.  


Sponsorship recognition includes:


• All benefi ts at the Benefactor or Patron level 
depending on level of sponsorship support;


• Placement of organizational logo near breakfast 
tables.


Coffee Break(s)
($3,500 each or $15,000 for all six)
Sponsor one or all six coffee breaks, and 
take advantage of immediate visibility and 
acknowledgement. Sponsoring all six coffee breaks 
includes benefi ts at the Patron level, and sponsorship 
of one coffee break includes all benefi ts at the 
Benefactor level. 


Sponsorship recognition includes:


• All benefi ts at the Patron or Benefactor level 
(depending on level of sponsorship support); 


• Strategic placement of organizational logo on/
near tables.


Exclusive


SPONSORSHIP OPPORTUNITIES


(Continued)


“The Mosaic Company was proud 
to be a major sponsor of RAE’s 
6th National Conference, which 
was held in the Tampa Bay area 
where we maintain a large base 
of operations. The local fi eld 
trips and conference sessions were 
educational and informative, 
focusing on estuarine habitat 
restoration topics important to the 
interests of Mosaic and Summit 
attendees.”


—Christine Smith, Mosaic







PAGE 9   SUMMIT PROSPECTUS   INSPIRING ACTION, CREATING RESILIENCE    WASHINGTON, D.C.   NOVEMBER 1-5, 2014


“The Federal Highway 
Administration was excited 
to continue supporting RAE’s 
ecological efforts on coastal 
resources. The Conference provides 
a platform for FHWA to discuss 
how the agency incorporates 
natural environmental protection 
and enhancement into the 
transportation decision-making 
process. We look forward to 2014 
in Washington, DC!”


—Gerry Solomon,
FHWA Offi ce of Project Development


and Environmental Review


Exhibitor


OPPORTUNITIES


With more than 130 exhibitors expected, the 
Summit 2014 Exposition provides participants 
with direct access to essential products, 
services, people, programs, and ideas. Join 
leading businesses, government agencies, non-
profi t organizations, academic and research 
institutions, product providers and others in 
showcasing your merchandise and expertise. 
Exhibitors represent all sectors and all aspects 
of coastal restoration and management. 


Exhibiting at Summit ($1,400) 
• One 8’ x 10’ exhibit booth space;
• 1 complimentary Summit registration;
• Exhibitor listing in Summit program;
• Recognition on RAE’s and TCS’ Summit websites.







PAGE 10   SUMMIT PROSPECTUS   INSPIRING ACTION, CREATING RESILIENCE    WASHINGTON, D.C.   NOVEMBER 1-5, 2014


“The Summit will be a valuable 


experience for marine law students 


and professionals; the collaboration 


between TCS and RAE will bring 


together a rich group of speakers 


and attendees.” 
—Susan Farady


Rhode Island Sea Grant Legal Program


Summit


SCHOLARSHIP FUND


The Summit’s Scholarship Fund provides 
support to students, staff of non-profi t 
organizations, young professionals, and 
others, who otherwise would not be able to 
attend our biennial event.  Scholarships are 
not intended to cover the full cost of the 
Summit, and generally provide assistance 
with registration and in some instances, 
partial help with travel expenses. 


If your organization has interest in 
supporting the Scholarship Fund, please 
contact Harvey Potts at hpotts@estuaries.org 
or (206) 624-9100 for further information.


If you have interest in applying for a 
scholarship, please visit the Summit’s website, 
www.estuaries.org/summit in Summer 2014 for 
more information.


“The RAE Conference is THE 
gathering place for individuals 
and organizations engaged 
in coastal restoration. Of the 
many conferences out there, 
this one is a MUST for anyone 
focused on coastal restoration, 
while providing an important 
opportunity to reconnect with 
key partners, establish new 
connections, and come away with 
new knowledge and inspiration.”  


—Steve Dubiel, Earth Corps







“After attending the fi rst six RAE conferences, I am more hopeful than ever that we 
will rebuild the coastal habitats and ecosystems that matter most to people around 
the U.S. and beyond. With so many people and organizations trying out new ideas 
and working together, there has been an exciting and rapid evolution from “I 
wonder if we can restore...?” to “How much restoration do we want...?” 


—Robert Brumbaugh, The Nature Conservancy


FOR MORE INFORMATION ABOUT THE 


NATIONAL PROGRAM COMMITTEE AND 


PROGRAM CONTENT, PLEASE CONTACT:


Harvey Potts
hpotts@estuaries.org 


206-624-9100


Steve Emmett-Mattox
sem@estuaries.org 


720-300-3139


FOR MORE INFORMATION ABOUT 


SPONSORSHIP AND EXHIBITOR 


OPPORTUNITIES, PLEASE CONTACT:


Founded in 1995 and established as a 501(c)(3) nonprofi t 
organization in 1999, Restore America’s Estuaries (RAE) serves 
as a national alliance of 11 community-based organizations that 
protect and restore coastal and estuarine habitat.


www.estuaries.org


The Coastal Society is a 501(c)(3) nonprofi t organization established 
in 1975, with a membership of over 300 private sector, academic, 
and government professionals and students. The Society is dedicated 
to actively ad-dressing emerging coastal issues by fostering dialogue, 
forging partnerships and promoting communications and education.


www.thecoastalsociety.org


NATIONAL OFFICE:
2300 Clarendon Blvd., Suite 603, Arlington, VA  22201


Tel: (703) 524-0248 | Fax: (703) 524-0287


NATIONAL OFFICE:
P.O. Box 3590, Williamsburg, VA 23187-3590


Tel: (757) 565-0999 |  Fax: (757) 565-0922


Suzanne Giles-Simon
ssimon@estuaries.org 


413-695-8922 








  National Fish Habitat Board  
  March 9-10, 2014  Meeting 


  Tab 2 
 
 


Title :  Board Performance Evaluation    
 
Desired outcome(s):  
Board discussion seeking future action necessary for decision at June Board meeting. What 


analyses should be done for June Meeting from evaluation.  Determine Board expectations 
for what we found out from evaluation.   
 
Background:   


The Board and NFHP supporters (56 total) was given a lengthy survey to help evaluate the 
performance of the Board and the programmatic effectiveness of the National Fish Habitat 
Partnership.  Results from this evaluation will be summarized to the Board through a set of 
slides at the Board meeting.    


 
Staff Recommendation/Proposal: 


 Establish next steps for future action from the findings of the evaluation for our June 
Board meeting.   


 
 
Reference material:  
Survey (Tab 2) 













































































































































































































































 


 


~ Storytelling ~  


Engaging in the Venerable Art and the Science of the Inspiring 


Narrative to Prompt Action  


An Overview and Some Recommended Processes and Exercises 


  







What is a Story?  Remember fairy tales like Jack and the Beanstalk that you read as a kid?  How 
about the myths of Zeus and Odysseus that were assigned for homework?  These are 


memorable stories because they taught us a lesson.  They opened our eyes and helped us 
explore a part of ourselves that we might have been unaware of prior to reading that story.  In 
today’s fast-paced society that inundates us with competing messages, these same lesson-


driven storytelling themes have been used for centuries and continue to be used by the best 
brands, the ones that successfully find a home in the audience’s mind.  Stories are designed to 
persuade an audience of a storyteller’s worldview. The storyteller positions characters 
throughout a narrative and shows what happens to these characters over a period of time. Each 


character’s actions reflect the values they live by and their fate shows us how values and 
actions are rewarded or punished — teaching a core truth about how the world works.  Stories 
with these themes can move an audience to take action.  By calling upon different techniques, 


stories can help us to navigate through the clutter and inspire action. 
 
What is a Story-Based Brand?  While all brands have a story, those brands that have 


successfully rediscovered the age-old principles of storytelling can connect more effectively 
with the world and with each other.   So, it is important to remember that stories are more 
than content and a narrative. The story goes beyond what’s written on a website, the text in a 


brochure or a presentation pitch.  Your story isn’t just what you tell people it’s a lso what they 
believe about you based on the signals your brand sends. The story is a complete picture made 
up of facts, feelings and interpretations, which means that part of your story isn’t even told 


by you, particularly as our culture shifts into the digital age.   
 
What can Creating a Story-Based Brand Do for NFHP?  Up until now, NFHP has been driven by 
strategic scientific investments in aquatic habitat conservation.  While the national platform, 


the regional partnerships and the people involved have made considerable strides in voluntary, 
collaborative conservation, there is a significant opportunity to expand upon this success 
through the targeted engagement of citizens, businesses and communities.  Developing a story-


based brand and using it as a primary engagement vehicle can change the game and catalyze 
diverse involvement in conservation.  Also, when combined with the proper framing, creating a 
story-based brand can leverage the government conservation community’s scientific capacity 


and help to elevate conservation into the social fabric of communities all across the country.  
 
Why Should NFHP Create a Story-Based Brand? 


o NFHP already has a logo with considerable ownership throughout the government 


conservation community.  Even though it’s not technically a brand, it serves the purpose of 


creating associations in the minds of conservation professionals around the country.  So, 


creating a story-based brand can maintain the NFHP logo while initiating a campaign to 


activate the passions of anglers and help to elevate conservation into the social fabric of 


their communities. 


o Budget limitations prevent NFHP from creating a traditional brand that is focused on 
generating impressions.  And doing this will allow NFHP to fully leverage the interconnected 


power of the web and social media 







o Because of technologies, how we communicate on a large scale has evolved over time.   
 Oral storytelling traditions represent one of the earliest forms of communication and 


have long been a part of human culture.  Prior to the advent of broadcast technologies 
like radio and television, storytelling was the prominent form of communication.  


 Ideas are passed peer-to-peer, through social networks;  


 Ideas are owned, curated and interpreted by everyone;  


 Ideas mutate as they are passed along and if they stop being passed, they die,  


 It’s a survival of the fittest landscape. 
 Radio and television ushered in a new era – the Broadcast Era  


 Ideas are distributed one to many, through broadcast media that not everyone has 
access to   


 Ideas are owned by their creator and broadcast to a captive audience;  


 Ideas are fixed and often illegal to change; 


 And it’s a survival of the richest landscape. 
 We are now living in the Digit-oral era in which our society has moved into a space 


where Facebook updates, text messages, emails and tweets dominate our lives.  This 
new digital culture has, maybe without meaning to, opened the door to a re-birth of the 


oral tradition.  


 Ideas are passed peer to peer, in social networks, and faster than before;  


 Ideas are owned, curated and interpreted by everyone;  


 Ideas mutate when passed along and if they stop being passed, they di e;  


 We’re back in a survival of the fittest landscape. 
o Storytelling needs to be the basis for an overarching strategy for all communications  


 While NFHP has a viable social media approach, an outreach component and the Waters 
to Watch campaign, the lack of an overarching communications strategy that drives all 
communications, connects and leverages all of NFHP’s assets and helps to engage more 


people in conservation is an obstacle and relegates NFHP to being just another 
government conservation program competing for a shrinking pot of funding 


 


Why is Story Telling Different? 
o Is not focused on promoting who you are and what you want to sell  
o One of the key differences between storytelling and traditional 


branding is that storytelling frames the target audience as a hero 
and the brand as the mentor; 
whereas, traditional branding 
positions the brand as the hero and 


the audience as a passive victim 
that can be fixed by the brand.  
Also, storytelling builds upon 


Maslow’s Hierarchy of Needs to 
persuade the people you want to 
take action. 







Storytelling Exercises 


If you’re wondering what ‘telling stories’ has to do with creating change, then the simple 
answer is – everything!  For those who are intent on being effective change agents, they need 


to become adept at the art and science and science of storytelling: 


 Maybe it’s because we’re all so overloaded with information.  


 Maybe it’s because we’re all so starved for meaning.  


 Or maybe it’s because, thanks to social media, everyone’s become a broadcaster these 
days. 


 Whatever the reason, we’re all getting the same memo at the same time: if you want to 
be heard, you’d better learn to tell better stories. 


 
We are living in a world that has lost connection to its traditional myths, and that we are 


looking for new ones to give us new meaning.  Although such stories are powerful – they touch 
all of us, frame our worldview, shape our assumptions, subconsciously influence our behavior – 
not all of us get to write those stories. What appears on the surface to be arguments over ideas 


or money is in fact fighting for control over cultural stories.  
 
The bottom line -- put down your facts, your threats, your pleadings and your special offers and 


become engaged in these simple storytelling exercises to create your narrative that taps into 
passions and inspires action. 
 


 Craft an Elevator Pitch 


 Know Our Audience - Develop Character Sketches 


 Apply Empathetic Engagement Techniques 


 Develop Our Story’s Moral 


 Align Our Core Values with Maslow’s Hierarchy and Use Building Blocks to Solidify Our 


Brand and Highlight Our Moral 


 Using the Hero’s Journey and 3-Act Story Structure to Develop Characters and Design 


Story Elements 


 Apply Storytelling’s Five Pillars – the MERIT Principles 


 Tell the Truth, Be Interesting and Live the Truth 


 Making Our Story a Myth 


 








Summary of NFHP Corporate Engagement Strategy 


Realized Through Marketing 
 


 


Introduction 


Today’s conservation requires collaboration, integration and connecting the dots on different 
scales.  Federal, state, and local governments, non-governmental organizations, industry, local 
businesses, and participating citizens all must collaborate to accomplish protection restoration 
and enhancement of all habitats that fish depend on.  The National Fish Habitat Partnership 


(Partnership or NFHP) was created for this very purpose, to break down operational silos.  And 
in order to be successful, NFHP must brand and market conservation to achieve the required 
collaboration, integration and connectivity.   


 
Our current state is the partnership at the national level remains unknown and irrelevant to 
many key stakeholders.  Also funding for NFHP projects remains relatively low and we are 


facing a competitive environment for additional funding.  Having an effective marketing 
strategy is a critical component to the future of the partnership.  Our strategy is based on Core 
Values of NFHP that complement our mission and goals.  These core values must resonate with 


NFHP partners and most importantly, the American people. 
 


Overall Goals of Strategy  


 Activate the passions of anglers and other aquatic recreational user groups to elevate 


conservation into the social fabric of their communities 


 Expand the capacity for conservation by transforming it from an almost exclusively 


dominated set of government activities to coordinated and universally supported set of 


behaviors that are embraced and modelled by citizens, businesses and communities  that 


will in turn complement the government’s actions 


 Diversify the funding available to support Regional Fish Habitat Partnership projects  through 


corporate and community involvement 


 Leverage and coordinate NFHPs entire infrastructure to engage businesses and local NGOs 


to actively participate in conservation alongside and in partnership with government 


agencies 


 


Overview 


 Where are we at? 


o National Scale 


 Expand the public relations campaign for the 10 Waters to Watch program.  


 Expand web resources to share FHP information and activities including project 


summaries 







 Expand social media reach through targeted post promotions and exhibiting at 


select events 


o Regional Scale 


 Regional Assessments needed to promote connectivity and consistency  


 Audience assessment capabilities 


 Ownership of key internal audiences 


 Existing Outreach vehicles 


o Newsletters, email blasts and/or engagement demonstration projects 


 Advanced capabilities 


o Proactive websites, use of social media/videos and community engagement 


& partnering 


 NEED:  Develop Regional FHP Outreach Assessment Tool 


 


Where do we want to go? 


o National Scale 


 Use existing/conduct new market research about anglers’ understanding of habitat 


conservation 


 Define the Unique Value Proposition of the NFHP  


 Create a national, story-based brand that resonates across multiple audiences 


 Coordination National-Regional connectivity with Social Media presence  


 Develop Regional capacity and strategically highlight progressive FHPs through 


Waters to Watch 


 Work with businesses to create revenue stream 


 Continued development of 501(c)(3) 


o Regional Scale 


 Adaptive Application of Story-Based Brand based on where Regional FHPs are at and 


the threats represented by the Challenge Areas (apply overriding story moral) 


 National-Regional Social Media connectivity (have a potential company in mind:  


(Engage121.com)  


 NEED:  Determine budget needs (research, brand development and 


implementation, website overhaul and social media connectivity) 


 


 How can we get there? 


o National Scale – assume leadership role in creating brand and engagement processes, 


facilitating national-regional connectivity across agencies, states and conservation 


community, activating regional industry engagement, developing revenue stream 


o Regional Scale – coordinate learning and engagement 







 NEED:  Leadership, vision, collaboration and perseverance 


 


 What will it look like when we are there? 


o National Scale – An interconnected national network of 18/19 semi-autonomous 


Regional FHPs 


o Regional Scale – A semi-autonomous, self-funding regional FHP that is supported 


through engagement strategies and the expanded ownership of the local businesses, all 


of which will focus on elevating conservation into a community’s social fabric 


 NEED: Leadership, vision, collaboration and perseverance 


 


Next Steps 
 


- Invite Nancy Furlow (Marketing Professor at Marymount University) & Doug Grann 


(Wildlife Forever, affiliation with North American Fishing Club (1.1 million members)  


o Initiate surveys about anglers’ relationship with habitat 


o Review survey results from Responsive Management 


 


- Define UVP 


 


- Build Story-Based Brand 


 


- Explore Budget Needs/Integrate Ryan’s work 


 


- Adaptive Application of Story-Based Brand based on where Regional FHPs are at 


 


 


 


  







 


  







 








  National Fish Habitat Board  


  March 9-10, 2014  Meeting 
  Tab 3 
 


 


 


Proposed NFHP Core Values 


The core values of an organization form the foundation on which we perform 
work and conduct ourselves.  We have an entire universe of values, but some are 
so primary, so important to us that they remain constant in an ever-changing 
world.  Core values are not descriptions of the work we do or the strategies we 
employ to accomplish our mission.  The values underlie our work, our 
interactions, and our strategies.  The core values are the most basic elements 
guiding our work every day in everything we do.   
 
What follows are some proposed core values for the NFHP Board to consider that 
the Ad Hoc Marketing Team has developed, using insights about the platform, the 
actual work that is being conducted and some market research about 
conservation concepts and how to best frame them so they resonate effectively 
with voters. 
 
 Water is essential for all life 


 
 Fish reflect the health of aquatic systems that support many plant and animal 


species 
 


 People are part of Nature, not apart from it 
 


 Conservation is an enduring yet dynamic American value 
 


 Today’s conservation requires a combination of people, passion and 
partnerships 


 


 Fish and fishing are integral to the American story and the American Family 
 


 Recreational, subsistence, and commercial fishing are social and economic 
drivers for conservation 


 








  National Fish Habitat Board  
  March 9-10, 2014  Meeting 


  Tab 3 
 
 


Title : Corporate Engagement Strategy Update 
 
Desired outcome(s):  


 Board action to approve the corporate engagement strategy. 


 Board action to approve draft NFHP core values. 


 Provide overview of crowdsourcing mechanism to raise funds for NFHP and FHPs.  


 
1) Provide an update on 2014 communications priorities of the Board. 
 


Background:   
The Board was presented with NFHP core values at their January 2014 Board conference 
call.  Since that call a subset of the Board and staff and representatives from the FWS and 
private industry have revised the NFHP core values document (Tab 4) and created a 


corporate engagement strategy (Tab 4).   
 
Core Values presented to the Board are as follows: 
 


 Water is essential for all life 


 Fish reflect the health of aquatic systems that support many plant and animal species 


 People are part of Nature, not apart from it 


 Conservation is an enduring yet dynamic American value 


 Today’s conservation requires a combination of people, passion and partnerships  


 Fish and fishing are integral to the American story and the American Family 


 Recreational, subsistence, and commercial fishing are social and economic drivers 


for conservation 
 
Staff Recommendation/Proposal: 


 Establishment of core values is important to help tell the story of NFHP.   


 Seek Board action for approving core values and corporate engagement strategy 
documents. 


 


 
Reference material:  
Core Values document, Corporate Engagement strategy, the art of storytelling (Tab 4) 


 








Revised Guidelines 
March 2014  
 


  National Fish Habitat Board  


  March 9-10, 2014  Meeting 
  Tab 4 
 


1 
 


 


 


 


Guidance for Selecting National Fish Habitat Partnership 10 “Waters to Watch” 


Projects 


 


Suggestions for 10 Waters to Watch: 


All Board-recognized NFHP Fish Habitat Partnerships (FHPs) will have an opportunity to 


suggest a project for selection for the 2014 “Waters to Watch” campaign. Due to the 


number of Board-recognized FHPs, increased competition is expected for the submission 


process.  Therefore, only one project per FHP (submissions dependent) can be selected for a 


fair process. Not All FHPs will have a project selected for the 10 “Waters to Watch” 


Campaign.  Proposed “Waters to Watch” submissions should be reflective of projects 


completed over the past calendar year or projects with dedicated funding allocated for the 


current year with the intention of the project happening during calendar year.    


Criteria for Selection: 


The criteria approved by the National Fish Habitat Board in March 2012 for consideration for 


a project to be  a “Water to Watch” are listed below. Project selection will be based on 


these criteria although not all categories may apply to any specific project. 







Revised Guidelines 
March 2014  
 


  National Fish Habitat Board  


  March 9-10, 2014  Meeting 
  Tab 4 
 


2 
 


 Size and scope of project. Larger scale projects in scope are preferred for selection; 


Projects that offer greatest impact to habitat improvement are preferred. 


 


 Media Friendly—media market size 


 


 Project involves charismatic leaders and dedicated partners. 


 


 Strong community support/involvement.   


 


 Volunteer involvement 


 


 Youth participation/education involved in project 


 


 Potential for Success— Project needs to show data of habitat loss or need for 


conservation (numbers, inventory, scientific recommendations, community benefit 


and increased angler participation) Projects concerning protection of intact systems 


will receive strong consideration. 


 


 Funding opportunities—areas of the country where the probability of strong 


partnerships and multiple funding opportunities may be more likely. 


 


 FHP Approval. 


 


 Projects done within the spirit and principles of NFHP. 


 







Revised Guidelines 
March 2014  
 


  National Fish Habitat Board  


  March 9-10, 2014  Meeting 
  Tab 4 
 


3 
 


Project Reporting and Updates: 


Regular reporting and updates are important for future success of the 10 “Waters to Watch” 


Campaign.  Projects for the 10 “Waters to Watch” will be selected with the understanding 


that brief reports will be submitted in bi-annually of the given project year upon request by 


the Communications Coordinator, Ryan Roberts rroberts@fishwildlife.org. A modifiable one-


sheet form report will be distributed to each of the Fish Habitat Partnerships that have 


projects selected for 2014. 


Fish Habitat Partnerships that have projects selected will be required to submit annual 


updates every year following the project being named to the list, with the purpose of 


updating progress and improvement over time and showing that the selected project has 


made an impact on improving fish habitat.   Please place an emphasis on gathering quality 


photos for reporting purposes, which will help to tell a good story. 


These reports will be critical for accountability for the selected projects and will be used 


for all of the following: 


 Generation of Media Attention (articles, news stories). 


 


 Project Site Visits for partners, members of state and federal agencies, members of 


state and local governments and members of Congress and staff. 


 


 Crafting of one-sheet (PDF) documents for each of the projects to document 


progress. 


 


 General updates – keeping track of project accomplishments and of partner 


involvement, volunteer opportunities, or educational initiatives. 



mailto:rroberts@fishwildlife.org





Revised Guidelines 
March 2014  
 


  National Fish Habitat Board  


  March 9-10, 2014  Meeting 
  Tab 4 
 


4 
 


There will be coordination with the Partnerships Committee to make this process as 


transparent as possible and for the need of any future changes to this criteria. 


The “Waters to Watch” campaign has featured 70 projects, since 2007, that are models for 


aquatic conservation that have received media recognition across the country, raising public 


awareness of the work of our Fish Habitat Partnerships.  Through implementation of the 


National Fish Habitat Action Plan these projects show over time, that science-based 


conservation actions and monitoring truly do make a difference nationally to benefit fish 


habitats.      


The 2014 “Waters to Watch” marketing plan and timeline is as follows: 


 


March 21 – Submission process begins - Guidance and Partner Project sheets sent to Fish 


Habitat Partnerships 


April 18– Project proposal submission deadline 


April 22 – Review by Communications Committee  


April 24 (proposed)- Projects reviewed by Board (via email/conference call) 


May 6 - 10 “Waters to Watch” Announcement    


 


Marketing Plan outline: 


 


The marketing of the 2014 “Waters to Watch,” will be coordinated with the FHPs of selected 


projects and will include: 


 National Press Release, National distribution plan  







Revised Guidelines 
March 2014  
 


  National Fish Habitat Board  


  March 9-10, 2014  Meeting 
  Tab 4 
 


5 
 


 Individualized Press Release coordinated and branded to FHP 


 Targeted Social Media promotions (Facebook, Twitter) 


 Interactive engagement through social media  


 Email Newsletter 


 Coordination with PR contacts within State/Federal Agencies and Conservation 


organizations 


 


 








  National Fish Habitat Board  
  March 9-10, 2014 Meeting 


  Tab 4 


 


 
 


Title : Communications Committee Update  
 
Desired outcome(s):  
1) Provide an update to the Board on 2014 initiatives related to: 


o 2014 Waters to Watch Campaign 
o National Fish Habitat Awards 


 
2) Provide an update on 2014 communications priorities of the Board. 


 
Background:   
The Board approved the following priorities of the Communications Committee during their 
October 2013 meeting in Charleston, SC.   


 Expand the public relations campaign for the 10 Waters to Watch program. 


 Establish a working group with the Board, the USFWS, and industry to develop 


messaging related to the core principles of NFHP. This is the first step in developing a 


national campaign to connect the National Fish Habitat Partnership and the FHPs with 


anglers. 


 Create web resources to share Fish Habitat Partnership information and activities 


including FHP project summaries. 


 Expand reach of social media reach through targeted post promotions.  


 Expand the NFHP presence at select events. 


 
Staff Recommendation/Proposal: 


 The Board should take action to approve NFHP core values document and corporate 


engagement strategy.   
 


 Endorse communications plan for Waters to Watch timeline and Fall 2014 NFHP 


Awards. 
 
Reference material:  
Waters to Watch FHP Guidance (Tab 5) 
 


 








NFHP National Marine 
Assessment 


Gulf of Mexico Demonstration Project  


Lessons Learned and Next Steps 
Science & 


Technology 


NFHP Science and Data Committee 


February 11, 2014 







2010 National Estuary Assessment 


U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration | NOAA Fisheries | Page 2 







2015 Marine Assessment Tasks 
1. Catalog all FHP assessments completed or underway 


2. Improve analytical basis of marine assessment to inland standards by incorporating all 


available fish and shellfish data and stressor relationships and addressing additional gaps 


3. Incorporate additional spatial framework information for estuaries in Alaska 


4. Incorporate additional spatial framework information for estuaries and nearshore-marine 


habitats in Hawaii 


5. Develop an initial assessment of nearshore-marine habitats 


6. Develop an initial assessment of offshore-marine habitats 


7. Determine how to incorporate process data using FHP demonstration projects 


8. Add socioeconomic data to spatial framework 


9. Incorporate available fisheries management and FHP objectives into the spatial framework 


10. Develop inland-marine system scoring linkages 


11. Incorporate the final Great Lakes assessment into overall Assessment 


12. Attribute additional water quality data 


13. Attribute additional mining and energy development data 


 


U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration | NOAA Fisheries | Page 3 







Assessment Challenges 


1. Selecting appropriate indicators 


2. Simple vs. robust methods 


3. Data “noise” 


4. Sampling effort 


5. Hierarchical relationships 


U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration | NOAA Fisheries | Page 4 







Assessment Approach 


• Regional scale 


• Add fish/shellfish data 


• Use robust models 


• Active FHP participation 


U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration | NOAA Fisheries | Page 5 


Pacific 


Coast 


Gulf of 


Mexico 


South 


Atlantic 


North 


Atlantic 


Mid- 


Atlantic 







Demonstration Project 


U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration | NOAA Fisheries | Page 6 







General assessment steps 


Step 1: Refine geospatial framework  


Step 2: Assemble and evaluate data  


Step 3: Rapid screening  


Step 4: Species and community modeling 


Step 5: Synthesize and map results 


U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration | NOAA Fisheries | Page 7 







Step 1: Geospatial Framework 


U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration | NOAA Fisheries | Page 8 







Step 1: Geospatial Framework 


U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration | NOAA Fisheries | Page 9 







Step 2: Assemble data 


Landscape stressors 


Local habitat disturbance 


Fish community 


Natural environmental variation 


U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration | NOAA Fisheries | Page 10 


Basin 


EDA/CDA 


Shoreline 


Sites/ 


samples 


Estuary 


S
C


A
LE


 
sm


al
l 


la
rg


e 







Step 2: Evaluate Data 


U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration | NOAA Fisheries | Page 11 


0 – 55 deg C 0 – 99 ppt 0 – 32 mg/l 







Step 3: Rapid Screening 


U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration | NOAA Fisheries | Page 12 







Step 3: Rapid Screening 


U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration | NOAA Fisheries | Page 13 







Step 4: Species Modeling 


U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration | NOAA Fisheries | Page 14 


Abundance 


Model 


Zero Model 







Step 4: Species Modeling 


U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration | NOAA Fisheries | Page 15 







Step 4: Species Modeling 


U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration | NOAA Fisheries | Page 16 


 Species Zero model Count model 


Stressor Basin agriculture Basin urban Basin agriculture Basin urban 


Harvestfish -0.07 0.67 -0.35 -0.43 


Southern flounder -0.08 0.41 -0.09 -0.003 


Striped anchovy 0.35 0.05 -0.13 0.03 


Bay whiff -0.12 0.88 0 -0.23 







Step 4: Community Modeling 


• Poisson GLMs 


• Still under development 


U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration | NOAA Fisheries | Page 17 







Step 5: Map Results 


U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration | NOAA Fisheries | Page 18 


Population Density in EDA 


TRI density 


% cropland in shoreline 


% urban in shoreline 







Step 5: Map Results 


U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration | NOAA Fisheries | Page 19 







Pilot assessment: Lessons learned 


1. Time investment 


2. Data issues 


3. Stakeholder involvement 


4. Computational requirements 


5. Scale 


U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration | NOAA Fisheries | Page 20 







Next Steps 


1. PMEP assessments 


2. NALCC assessment 


3. Additional Gulf analyses? 


4. South Atlantic? 


5. Alaska & Hawaii? 


6. Inland-marine linkages? 


 U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration | NOAA Fisheries | Page 21 







West Coast Assessments 
Nursery Habitat 


Assessment 


NFHP National 


Assessment 


Forage Fish 


Assessment 


Lead PMEP NMFS NMFS 


Focus Nursery functions for 


juvenile fish in West 


Coast estuaries 


Condition and key 


threats to estuary 


habitats (nearshore?) 


Habitat-related 


changes over time for 


forage fish 


U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration | NOAA Fisheries | Page 22 







North and Mid-Atlantic Assessment 


U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration | NOAA Fisheries | Page 23 







SDC Input 


1. Timeline? 


2. 2015 report 


3. Funding 


4. Priorities  


U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration | NOAA Fisheries | Page 24 








Wesley M. Daniel1, Dana Infante, Arthur Cooper 
 


Department of Fisheries and Wildlife, Michigan State University 
East Lansing, Michigan 48823 


1Danielwe@msu.edu 







 Brief review of 2010 National Inland Assessment- Infante 
 


 New & Updated Data- Daniel 
◦ New dams and fragmentation metrics – Cooper 
◦ New landscape data 
◦ New fish community data 


 


 Improvements to the Analytical Methods- Daniel 
◦ Variation between catchment sizes 
◦ Controlling for spatial autocorrelation 
◦ Correcting false fragmentation in NHDPlus V1 
◦ Plans for scoring methods for Habitat Condition index (HCI) 


 


 Proposed Products- Daniel 
 







2 0 1 0  P R O J E C T  O U TC O M E S  


1. Developed a spatial framework with 
standard spatial units, multiple scales 


• Wang et al. 2010. Fisheries. 


 


2. Compiled and attributed data to the 
framework, created a nation-wide 
database 


• www.nbii.gov/far/nfhap 


 


3. Completed assessments of habitats    
for rivers in: 


• Conterminous US 


• Alaska and Hawaii (initial efforts) 


• www.fishhabitat.org 


 







S PAT I A L  F R A M E W O R K :  K E Y  T O  


M A N A G I N G ,  A N A L Y Z I N G ,  S U M M A R I Z I N G  D A T A  


National Hydrography Dataset Plus (NHDPlus V1) 


http://www.horizon-systems.com/nhdplus/ 


Network 
catchment 


Local 
catchment 


Reach 


• Stream reach = basic unit 


• Available throughout 
conterminous US 


 


 


 


• 1:100,000 scale river 
coverage 


• 2.6 million reaches 
– Local catchments defined 


– Includes network topology 
(network catchment 
summaries) 







Local catchments, reaches NHDPlus 


WWF ecoregions Agg. ecoregions Partnerships 


8-digit HUs Catchments 


8-digit HUs 


Ecoregions States EDUs 







R E G I O N A L  D E T E R M I N A T I O N  
O F  A S S E S S M E N T  S C O R E S  


Human activities 
(anthropogenic 
land uses) limit 
fish by altering 
habitat 


 


Influence in local 
and network 
catchments 


Fishes 


Network 
catchment 


Local 
catchment 


Habitat 


Natural landscape 
factors also 


influence habitat 
 
 
 


Natural landscape 
factors vary 
regionally… 







Redundancy check  


I D E N T I F Y I N G  F I S H  M E T R I C S   
T O  I N D I C A T E  H A B I T A T  C O N D I T I O N  


• Summarized fish by functional 
metrics suggesting fish response 
to habitat 


 


• Followed Stoddard et al. (2008) to 
select metrics most responsive 
to landscape anthropogenic 
landscape stresses in 9 regions  


 


• Classified most/least impaired 
reaches, using conservative 
estimates of landscape condition 
thresholds determined from 
literature  


 


 


Calculated fish metrics 


Zero test 


Metric range 


Reproducibility 


Sensitivity test  


SCREENING  APPROACH  







CONSIDERING RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN  


FISH METRICS AND STRESSES 


Local dam 
count (SAP) 


% Local Pasture (SAP) 


1. Repeating, characteristic response across 
metrics and stresses 


2. Area under the curve = limited by other 
stresses 


Catchment 
Mine Density 


(SAP) 







TO  G E N E R AT E  S C O R E S  F O R  E A C H  R E A C H ,  W E  


IDENTIFIED CONDITION CLASSES  
F O R  E A C H  B I O L O G I C A L  M E T R I C - S T R E S S  P L OT S  B Y  R E G I O N  


 
 


5 4 1 3 2 


Upper= 0.012 


1. Threshold at 
which 
impairment 
begins, Baker 
and King 
(2010) 


%  N E T W O R K  M E D I U M  
D E N S I T Y  U R B A N  ( N A P )  


Lower= 19 


2. Maximum level 
of degradation, 
identified 
visually 


3. Mid-range 
scores 
determined by 
equal breaks 


 







STRESS  VALUES  TO  CONDIT ION  SCORES  FOR   REACHES  
FOR  IND IV IDUAL  B IOLOGICAL  METR ICS  


Reach %Urb %Past #Dam 


1 4 10 0 


2 0 60 0 


3 18 3 4 


A c t u a l  R e a c h  
S t r e s s  V a l u e s  


Reach Urb Past Dam HCI 


1 4 5 5 4 


2 5 1 5 1 


3 2 5 3 2 


2.  Habitat condition determined by 
most limiting stress to each reach 


1.  Biological condition can only be as 
good as its response to its most limiting 
influence 


% Network Urban # Network Dams % Local Pasture 


C O N D I T I O N  S C O R E  F O R  
B I O L O G I C A L  M E T R I C  







CUMULATIVE SCORE FOR STREAM REACH  
B A S E D  O N  M U LT I - M E T R I C  R E S P O N S E   
O F  F I S H  A S S E M B L A G E S  


• Previous step:  created habitat condition index (HCI) for each 
biological metric for each reach in each region 


 


• Next step:  averaged individual biological metric scores for a reach to 
derive average habitat condition index (HCI) 


 


• Mapped scores… 
 


Reach Biometric1 Biometric 2 Biometric 3 AvgHCI 


1 4 5 5 4.66 


2 5 1 5 3.66 


3 2 5 3 3.33 







RESULTS OF 2010 LANDSCAPE ASSESSMENT OF FISH HABITAT 


CONDITIONS IN UNITED STATES RIVERS AND THEIR WATERSHEDS 







• Fish data – add additional records 


 


• Characterize dams and river fragmentation more 
accurately 


 


• Summarize disturbances in stream buffers 


 


• Characterize water withdrawals 


 


• Test/enhance our scoring approach… 


OPPORTUNITIES  
FOR  2015  ASSESSMENT  











Identified GIS datasets summarizing 
disturbances that were: 


 


1. Representative of conditions since 2000 


2. Consistent across conterminous US 


3. Meaningful for assessing fish habitat 


4. * Of fine enough spatial resolution to 
discriminate between catchments 


  * Like to revisit this point 







 NHDPlus V1 
 Updated 


◦ Land use 2006 NLCD 
◦ Road variables 2006 TIGER 
◦ Climate data 1990-2010 


 New 
◦ 90m buffer for local and network catchments 
◦ NABD dams & fragmentation metrics 
◦ Mine variables (Coal and Uranium mines) 
◦ *Atmosphere deposition (Nitrate and Sulfate) 
◦ *Water withdrawals  
◦ *County-Level Estimates of Nutrients  


 
 
 


 


Glen Canyon Dam on the Colorado 
River, AZ 


www.cliffdwellerslodge.com 







Fishes 


Network 
catchment  


& 90m buffer 


Local 
catchment 


& 90m buffer 


Habitat 







2010 assessment: dam 
density in NHDPlus V1 
catchments 


Reach 


Network 
catchment 


Local 
catchment 







Cooper et al. In Prep 
Dam fragmentation metrics 


• ~80,000 total dams 
 


•Original dataset: 
National Inventory of  
Dams (NID) 2009 
 


•Size Criteria: 
>25ft height & 15ac ft storage 
        Or 
>6ft height & 50ac ft storage 
 
•Spatially verified and linked to 
NHDPlus V1 







Selected four fragmentation metrics: 


 1.  Upstream network density 


 2.  Downstream mainstem density 


 3.  Upstream mainstem openness 


 4.  Downstream mainstem openness  


 


Combined, this set of metrics accounts for: 


 Upstream and downstream dam influences 


 Connectivity loss  


 Cumulative dam effects 


 Example Reach 







• ~70,000  
coal mines 
  


•~92,000  
minor coal mine 
support activities 
 


•~22,000  
Uranium mines 
 


•  Spatially linked 
to NHDPlus V1 


Daniel et al. In review Ecological Applications 







Open/low intensity urban land use (%) 
Medium intensity urban land use (%) 
High intensity urban land use (%) 
Impervious surface (%) 
Pasture/hay land use (%) 
Cultivated crops land use (%) 
Population density (#/km2) 
Road length (m/km2) 
Road crossings (#/km2) 
*Dams and fragmentation metrics (#/km2) 
Mines (Mineral, *Coal, *Uranium) (#/km2) 
Toxics release inventory sites (#/km2) 
National pollution discharge elimination system sites (#/km2) 
EPA superfund national priorities sites (#/km2) 
*Atmosphere deposition (Nitrate and Sulfate) (ug/ha) 
*Water withdraw (Surface and Ground) (MGD/Km2*100) 
*County-Level Estimates of Nutrient Inputs to the Land(kg/km2) 
 
 


*= new variables 


2006 NLCD 


2006 TIGER 


2000 Census  


2003 USGS, 2012 USGS, 2003 EPA  
2012 NABD  


1994-2010 NADP  


1982-2001 USGS  


2000 Census  


2005 USGS  


2007 EPA  







Open/low intensity urban land use (%) 
Medium intensity urban land use (%) 
High intensity urban land use (%) 
Impervious surface (%) 
Pasture/hay land use (%) 
Cultivated crops land use (%) 
Population density (#/km2) 
Road length (m/km2) 
Road crossings (#/km2) 
*Dams and fragmentation metrics (#/km2) 
Mines (Mineral, *Coal, *Uranium) (#/km2) 
Toxics release inventory sites (#/km2) 
National pollution discharge elimination system sites (#/km2) 
EPA superfund national priorities sites (#/km2) 
*Atmosphere deposition (Nitrate and Sulfate) (ug/ha) 
*Water withdraw (Surface and Ground) (MGD/km2*100) 
*County-Level Estimates of Nutrient Inputs to the Land (kg/km2) 
 


*= new variables 


Summarized at: 
Network, Local catchment, and 90m Buffer 


Summarized at: 
Network, Local catchment 


Summarized at: 
Network catchment 







Atmosphere deposition (Nitrate and Sulfate) (ug/ha)- NADP 
Water withdraw (Surface and Ground) (MGD/km2*100)-USGS 
County-Level Estimates of Nutrient Inputs to the Land(kg/km2)-USGS 
 


Question: 
Should we incorporate 
variables that do not 
discriminate among arcs 
in the assessment? 







 


Mean elevation of local catchment (m) 
Mean slope of local catchment (degrees) 
Mean annual air temperature (degrees C) 
Mean annual precipitation (mm/year) 
Network catchment area (km2) 
Baseflow index (base flow/total flow * 100) 
 


Additional natural variables: 
TNC easement layer 
Stewardship layer 
Surficial Lithology 
STATSGO soil hydrology 
 
 


2003 USGS  


2005 USGS  


1993-2007 GAP Land Stewardship USGS  
 2012  


1990-2010 PRISM  


NHDPlus V1  


 2004 USGS  


1995 USGS  







Identified fish community samples from 
state, federal, university, and museum 


sources: 
 


1. Fish samples since 1990 


2. Collected by single pass electrofishing 
techniques 


3. Whole community samples  


 (not target species sampling) 


4. Relative abundance/counts for species  


 (not presence/absence) 


5. Site location data 
 







 Number of fish records in fish database 
◦ 2010: 633,200 


◦ 2015: 855,039  


 Updated data from previous state providers 


 Number species represented in 2015 database 
◦ 702 species (excludes hybrids and subspecies) 


 *Fish abundance data for Alaska 


 *Fish presence/absence for Hawaii 
* Will be discussed in a future call 















Site Variation 


nola.com 


Mississippi River near New Orleans, LA 


Green River, KY 


www.campbellsville.com 


unh.edu 


Stream in Ohio 


• 2010 assessment accounted for 
variation between sites in WSA 
ecoregions  
 


• We propose to also use stream 
size classes in ecoregions 
• When enough data is available 


 


• Stream size classes based on 
Goldstein and Meador 2004, 
Wang et al. 2011  
 


• Headwater <100 km2 


• Medium rivers 100<10,000 km2 


• Large rivers >10,000 km2 



https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&docid=8LDwlB0boUG9fM&tbnid=JOe2AJSF-4_87M:&ved=0CAQQjB0&url=https://extension.unh.edu/Headwater-Streams&ei=gDz5UpbjDqPEyQG3hoGgBw&psig=AFQjCNF9mY294Jmf2FhizpGjiKE-1LmMOw&ust=1392152040818654





Spatial Analysis in Macroecology 
(SAM) V4.0  


Controlling spatial autocorrelation in 
fish sample sites 
• Conterminous US in HUC 6s 


Example: 
HUC 6: 20100 


Highest Moran I: 0.21 
In states : 


Vermont and  
New York 







• ~1% of Arcs 
 


• We did not alter 
NHDplus V1 
 


• Arcs found to be 
artificially broken at 
quad boundaries were 
linked together in the 
database  


  







Redundancy check  


 Select new set of fish metrics following 
the Stoddard et al. (2008) approach for 
each WSA ecoregion 
 


◦ Emmanuel A. Frimpong’s (Virginia 
Tech) newest fish trait matrix  


 


◦ New EPA intolerant and tolerant 
metrics developed from literature* 


 


 Also use the previously selected metrics 
from the 2010 assessment 
 


 New game fishes metric* 


 


 


 


Calculated fish metrics 


Zero test 


Metric range 


Reproducibility 


Sensitivity test  


SCRE E N I N G  APPRO ACH  


*Daniel et al. In review Ecological Applications 







Western Mountain (WMT) 


% Native Water Col 
Individuals, Native Lithophilic 
Individuals, Native Herbivore 
Taxa, Native Lotic Individuals, 
Omnivore Taxa 


 


Xeric Region (XER) 


Herbivore Individuals, 
Lithophilic Taxa, T & E 
Individuals 


Southern Plains (SPL) 


Omnivore Taxa, Native 
Herbivore Taxa, Native 
Lithophilic Individuals, 
Native Lotic Individuals, 
Native Water Column Ind.  


Northern Plains (NPL) 


Herbivore Individuals, 
Lithophilic Taxa, T & E 
Individuals 


Upper Midwest (UMW) 


Native Herbivore Taxa, 
Native Hider Taxa, 
Intolerant Individuals, 
Lithophilic Individual, 
Omnivore Individuals, 
Piscivore Individuals, T & 
E Individuals, Water 
Column Taxa 


Northern 
Appalachians (NAP) 


Herbivore Individuals, 
Intolerant Individuals, 
Native Lithophil Taxa, 
Native Piscivore Taxa 


Southern Appalachians 
(SAP) 


Lithophilic Individuals, 
Intolerant Individuals, 
Native Piscivore 
Individual, Native 
Rheophilic Taxa, Native 
Water Column Ind. 


Coastal Plains (CPL) 


Herbivore Taxa, Native 
Invertivore Taxa, Nesting 
Individuals, Omnivore 
Individuals 


Tallgrass Prairie (TPL) 


Herbivore Taxa, Invertivore 
Individuals, Native Lithophil 
Taxa, Native Lotic 
Individuals, Native 
Piscivores, Nesting Taxa, 
Water Column Taxa 


WMT 


XER 


NPL 


SPL 


TPL 


CPL 


SAP 


NAP 
UMW 


2010 metrics 







• Intolerant and tolerant species metrics were developed 
from the USEPA’s published list of fish indicator species 
(Grabarkiewicz and Davis 2008).  
 


• Ohio EPA 1987 
• Jester et al. 1992 
• Lyons 1992 
• Whittier and Hughes 1998 
• Barbour et al. 1999 
• Halliwell et al. 1999 
• Pirhalla 2004 
• *Whittier et al. 2007 


 


• We chose the most conservative species from the list 
that had the majority of their designations as either 
tolerant or intolerant, but not both. 


*= Added to the EPA List 







Tolerant Fishes 


Intolerant Fishes 


Scientific name                                Common name 


Acipenser brevirostrum Shortnose sturgeon 


Acipenser medirostris Green sturgeon 


Acipenser oxyrinchus Atlantic sturgeon 


Acipenser transmontanus White Sturgeon 


Ammocrypta pellucida Eastern sand darter 


Catostomus insignis Sonora sucker 


Catostomus occidentalis Sacramento sucker 


Centrarchus macropterus Flier 


Clinostomus elongatus Redside dace 


Cottus aleuticus Coastrange sculpin 


Cottus bairdii Mottled sculpin 


Cottus beldingi Paivte Sculpin 


Cottus carolinae Banded sculpin 


Cottus confusus Shorthead Sculpin 


Cottus klamathensis Marbled Sculpin 


Cottus leiopomus Wood River Sculpin 


Elassoma zonatum Banded pygmy sunfish 


Enneacanthus chaetodon Blackbanded sunfish 


Erimystax dissimilis Streamline chub 


Erimystax x-punctatus Gravel chub 


Etheostoma camurum Bluebreast darter 


Etheostoma histrio Harlequin darter 


Etheostoma maculatum Spotted darter 


Etheostoma zonale Banded darter 


Fundulus catenatus Northern studfish 


Hypentilium nigricans Northern hog sucker 


Hybopsis amblops Bigeye chub 


Ichthyomyzon fossor Northern brook lamprey 


Ichthyomyzon gagei Southern brook lamprey 


Ichthyomyzon greeleyi Mountain brook lamprey 


Lampetra appendix American brook Lamprey 


Lampetra richardsoni Western Brook Lamprey 


Lampetra similis Klamoth River Lamprey 


Lampetra tridentata Pacific lamprey 


Lota lota Burbot 


Moxostoma carinatum River redhorse 


Moxostoma cervinum Black redhorse 


Moxostoma lachneri Greater jumprock 


Moxostoma valenciennesi Greater redhorse 


Nocomis biguttatus Hornyhead chub 


Nocomis micropogon River chub 


Notropis rubellus Rosyface shiner 


Scientific name Common name 


Ameiurus melas 


Ameiurus natalis 


Ameiurus nebulosus 


Carpiodes carpio 


Catostomus commersonii 


Ctenopharyngodon idella 


Cyprinus carpio 


Fundulus diaphanus 


Fundulus heteroclitus 


Lepomis cyanellus 


Lepomis macrochirus 


Perca flavescens 


Pimephales notatus 


Pimephales promelas 


Rhinichthys atratulus 


Semotilus atromaculatus 


Black bullhead 


Yellow bullhead 


Brown bullhead 


River carpsucker 


White sucker 


Grass carp 


Common carp 


Banded killifish 


Mummichog 


Green sunfish 


Bluegill 


Yellow perch 


Bluntnose minnow 


Fathead minnow 


Eastern blacknose dace 


Creek chub 


 







 


 


 


M. salmoides 


O. clarkii 


E. americanus 


• Game fishes are defined in this study as species 
(or in some cases, groups of fishes) that are 
recognized by individual states as potentially 
being targeted by anglers and that have 
regulations limiting their harvest for recreational 
use as described in publically-available fishing 
guide books specific to each state.   
 


• The purpose for generating this metric is to test 
responsiveness of game fishes to anthropogenic 
landscape disturbances.  
 


• This metric was specific to each state and reflects 
only that state’s recognized game species.  


NFHP Science and Data Board  
reviewed in Spring 2013 







TITAN (Baker and King 2010) 


Recent Freshwater Science Articles 
Cuffney and Qian  2013 


Baker and King 2013 







 


TITAN (Baker and King 2010) 
(change-point analysis with indicator analysis ) 


 


 R code Segmented (Muggeo 2013) 
(piecewise regression)  


• To be considered a significant threshold  
• Both techniques had to be significant 
• Threshold point has to overlap within the ≤ 5% error rate 







% Network Urban 


• 2010 assessment used 5 
classes to represent habitat 
condition based on the 
community response to 
most limiting  disturbance 
variable. 
 


• Maintain that number of 
condition classes 
 


• Test the development of 
breaks in the intermediate 
classes 


 


• Incorporate multiple 
disturbances 
 
 


 
 


IDENTIFIED CONDITION CLASSES  







• Continue with 5 score 
groups 


 
 


• An assessment with 5 
categories allows 
multiple categories with 
an intermediate 
condition and allow 
detection of small 
changes in habitat 
quality 


 


• Follows EPA Biological 
condition gradient 


 


IDENTIFIED CONDITION CLASSES  


Figure based on : 
Davies and Jackson 2006 







Threshold point 


Condition classes scoring 


% Network Urban 







Threshold point 


Condition classes scoring:  
breaks in intermediate classes 


% Network Urban 


5 


Group 5: best available 
From zero on X axis to threshold point   


4 3 2 
Groups 4-2: intermediate groups 
Divide the range of stress values 
between the 5 and 1 by three 


1 


Group 1: most disturbed 
Visually assessed at maximum 
biological potential ceases to decline 
and persists at a very low value 


Note: These are the same steps taken in 2010 assessment 


Testing new methods:  
Natural breaks 
Standard deviations 







 Move away from single most limiting disturbance 
scores/ base scores on multiple disturbances 
◦ Excludes information 


◦ Accounts for more disturbance to system 


◦ Multiple disturbances can: 


 Indicate accumulative or indirect influences 


 Better approximate mechanistic impacts 
 


 Use significant disturbances (threshold responses) 
in a reach to derive average habitat condition index 
(HCI) 


 







Reach Scores: Multiple Disturbances 


Reach 1 
NAP 


Network 
Dams 


Buffer 
Urban 


Local  
Mines 


Network 
Road 
Crossings 


Intolerant 3 1 4 2 


Water 
column  


3 1 4 2 


Herbivore 3 3 4 3 


Omnivore 2 2 4 2 


Lithophilic 3 3 3 2 


HCI 
Score 


2.8 2 3.8 2.2 


Hypothetical example 
NAP region has 
• 5 fish metrics 
• 4 significant disturbances  







Reach 1 
NAP 


Network 
Dams 


Buffer 
Urban 


Local  
Mines 


Network 
Road 
Crossings 


Intolerant 3 1 4 2 


Water 
column  


3 1 4 2 


Herbivore 3 3 4 3 


Omnivore 2 2 4 2 


Lithophilic 3 3 3 2 


HCI 
Score 


2.8 2 3.8 2.2 


5= best available 1= most disturbed 


Hypothetical example 
NAP region has 
• 5 fish metrics 
• 4 significant disturbances  


The four most important 
disturbances in the reach based 
on average HCI scores 


Reach Scores: Multiple Disturbances 







Reach 1 
NAP 


Network 
Dams 


Buffer 
Urban 


Local  
Mines 


Network 
Road 
Crossings 


Intolerant 3 1 4 2 


Water 
column  


3 1 4 2 


Herbivore 3 3 4 3 


Omnivore 2 2 4 2 


Lithophilic 3 3 3 2 


HCI 
Score 


2.8 2 3.8 2.2 


5= best available 1= most disturbed 


Hypothetical example 
NAP region has 
• 5 fish metrics 
• 4 significant disturbances  


Most Limiting from 2010 


Important information that is excluded with most 
limiting approach. Suggests altered connectivity in 
the network catchment. 


Reach Scores: Multiple Disturbances 







Reach Scores: Multiple Disturbances 
Weighting limiting disturbances 


Reach 1 
NAP 


Network 
Dams 


Buffer 
Urban 


Local  
Mines 


Network 
Road 
Crossings 


Intolerant 3 1 4 2 


Water 
column  


3 1 4 2 


Herbivore 3 3 4 3 


Omnivore 2 2 4 2 


Lithophilic 3 3 3 2 


HCI 
Score 


2.8 2 3.8 2.2 


5= best available 1= most disturbed 


Hypothetical example 
NAP region has 
• 5 fish metrics 
• 4 significant disturbances  


Weighted score for the reach : 2.6 


Possible weighting scale 
based on average HCI 
score: 
 


Most limiting:  50% 
 


2nd   30% 
 


3rd   20% 
 


4th   10% 







• Cumulative scores would represent 
ecoregion variation based off best 
and poorest condition sites. 
 
 


• Uniqueness of ecoregions are better 
represented by a multiple 
disturbance score index 
 


• Narrative classification maybe 
updated 


 


• 5=Excellent 
• 4= Good 
• 3= Fair 
• 2= Poor 
• 1= Very poor 


 


• Still comparable to 2010 results 
 


 


 
 
 


Cumulative score  
for stream reach  







 Acquired new fish community data sets 
 Acquired additional landscape information 
 Improved characterization of stream fragmentation 
 Created buffer summaries 
 Screened records and link site coordinates to NHDPlus 


V1 stream arcs 
 Improved our threshold-response approach 
 Accounted for spatial-biases 
 Accounted for false fragmentations in NHDPlus V1 


layer 
 Development of new response metrics  


 







 Updated scores and maps of fish habitat condition for the 
conterminous US, Alaska, and Hawaii 
◦ Fish community 
◦ Game fishes (for each WSA & state) 


 


 Comparison to 2010 results to see areas of alteration 
 


 List of the most significant disturbances for each WSA 
region 
◦ Including the most limiting 


 


 List of the most responsive fish metrics for each WSA 
region 
 







 Decision support information for selecting restoration, 
enhancement and conservation sites in each ecoregion 
◦ Use of optimization methods and additional landscape variables  


to make “informed” decisions 
 Protected lands 


 EPA 303d variables 


 Invasive species 


 Climate change models 


 Possible integration of social economic information 
 


 Ecoregion, State, FHP specific (maps & GIS layers)products 
with additional data not used in the assessment 
 


 
 


 
 











 Threshold analysis 


 Proposal for scoring approach for review 


 NFHP Science and Data board call 
 


 Hawaii assessment review 
 


 Alaska assessment review 


 NFHP Science and Data board call 
 


 Plan for the inland lake assessment 


 Draft 2015 National Inland Assessment 
 


Spring 
2014 
 
 
Summer 
2014 
 
 
Fall 
2014 
 
 
Winter 
2015 
 
 
 







 We first wish to acknowledge the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and 
the U.S. Geological Survey Aquatic Gap Program for funding this 
effort. 
 


 NFHP’s Science and Data Committees co-chaired by Gary Whelan 
(Michigan Department Natural Resources), Andrea Ostroff (U.S. 
Geological Survey Aquatic Gap Program), and formerly by Doug 
Beard (U.S. Geological Survey).   
 


 We wish to acknowledge the Aquatic Landscape Ecology Lab 
members: Daniel Wieferich, Kyle Herreman, Ralph Tingley, Jared 
Ross, Darren Thornbrugh, Yin-Phan Tsang and Damon Krueger  
 


 We also wish to acknowledge Alexandra David, Evan Shields, Matt 
Plomp, Russell Cotner, and Jessica Keyes who assisted with GIS tasks.  
 


 Finally, we wish to acknowledge the following groups for special 
assistance:  Hawai’i FHP, Eastern Brook Trout Joint Venture, Mat-Su 
FHP, Southwest AK FHP, Kenai Peninsula FHP, and SARP. 
 







The following individuals also made substantive contributions to the effort:  
Christopher Estes (Alaska Fish and Game), Scott Robinson (Southeast Aquatic Resources Partnership), Joe Rogers (Rushing Rivers Institute), Tim 
Birdsong (Texas Parks and Wildlife), Jim Estes (Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission), Kimberly Bonvechio (Florida Fish and Wildlife 
Conservation Commission), Kevin Wehrly (Michigan Department Natural Resources), Thom Litts (Georgia Department of Natural Resources), Angela 
Grier (Indiana Department of Natural Resources), Matt Combes (Missouri Department of Conservation), Gust Annis (Missouri Resource Assessment 
Partnership), Mike Hardin (Kentucky Department for Fish and Wildlife), Rodney Pierce (Kentucky Department for Environmental Protection), Jeff 
DeShon (U.S. Environmental Protection Agency), Bob Miltner (U.S. Environmental Protection Agency), Greg Kloxin (Oklahoma Conservation 
Commission), Margaret Blevins (Oklahoma Conservation Commission), Mark Scott (South Carolina Department of Natural Resources), Frank Fiss 
(Tennessee Water Resources Authority), Jim McKenna (U.S. Geological Survey), Todd Richards (Massachusetts Division of Fish and Wildlife), Arlene 
Olivero (The Nature Conservancy), Jonathan Higgins (The Nature Conservancy), Robert Hughes (Oregon State University) Cecil Rich (Alaska 
Department of Fish and Game), Corinne Smith (The Nature Conservancy), Mark Hudy (U.S. Department Agriculture, Forest Service), Gordon Smith (US 
Fish and Wildlife Service), Glen Higashi (Hawai’i Division of Aquatic Resources), Linda Koch (University of Hawai’i at Manoa), Malie Beach-Smith 
(Hawai’i Department of Health), Robert Nishimoto (Hawai’i Division of Aquatic Resources), Dan Polhemus (US Fish and Wildlife Service), Jim Parham 
(Parham and Associates Environmental Consulting), Jamie Carter (National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, Pacific Services Center), Kalisi 
Fa’anunu Mausio (National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, Fisheries Service - Pacific Islands), Risa Oram (National Oceanic and 
Atmospheric Administration, Pacific Islands Fisheries Science Center), Ryan Snow (Alaska Department of Fish and Game),  Shane Hertzog (Alaska 
Department of Fish and Game),  Nicole Eiden (Arizona Game and Fish Department), Jeffery W. Quinn (Arkansas Department of Environmental Quality), 
Sally Entrekin (University of Central Arkansas), Rick Feeney (Natural History Museum of Los Angeles County), Harry Vermillion (Colorado Division of 
Parks and Wildlife), Ellen Dickey (Delaware Department of Natural Resources), Ann Holtrop (Illinois Department of Natural resources), Tom Wilton 
(Iowa Department of Natural Resources),  Mark Van Scoyoc (Kansas Department of Natural Resources), John Brumely (Kentucky Division of Water), 
Brian Alford (Louisiana Department of Wildlife and Fisheries), Beau Gregory (Louisiana Department of Wildlife and Fisheries), Mary Gallagher (Maine 
Department of Environment Protection), Ross Williams (Maryland Department of Natural Resources), John Sandberg (Minnesota Pollution Control 
Agency), Jake Schaefer (University of Southern Mississippi), Ken Bazata (Nebraska Department of Environmental Quality), Patrick Sollberger (Nevada 
Department of Wildlife), John Magee (New Hampshire Fish and Game Department), Lisa Barno (New Jersey Division of Fish and Wildlife), Alexandra 
M. Snyder (Museum of Southwest Biology),  Steve Hurst (New York State Department of Environmental Conservation), Bryn Tracy (North Carolina 
Division of Water Quality), Mary Davis (Southeast Aquatic Resources Partnership), Dennis Mishne (Ohio Environmental Protection Agency), William 
Frazier (Oklahoma  Conservation Commission), Geno Adams (South Dakota Game, Fish and Parks), Susan Lanier (Tennessee Wildlife Resource 
Agency), Michael Kaller (Louisiana State University), William Kelso (Louisiana State University), Christopher L. Higgins (Tarleton State), Rich Langdon 
(Vermont Fish and Wildlife Department), Frank J. Rahel (University of Wyoming), Billy Justus (USGS, Arkansas Water Science Center), Stan Lee Miller 
(Clemson University), Russell Burman (Pennsylvania Fish and Boat Commission), Brant E. Fisher (Indiana Department Natural Resources), Stacey 
Sobat (Indian Department Environmental Management), and Mike Slattery (U.S. Geological Survey).   






Sheet1

		First		Last		Committee Responsibility		Organization		Email

		Stan		Allen		Board Liaison		Pacific States Marine Fisheries Commission		Stan_allen@psmfc.org

		Jose		Barrios		Committee Member		US Fish and Wildlife Service		Jose_Barrios@fws.gov

		Jennifer		Bayer		Committee Member		US Geological Survey, Cook, Washington		jbayer@usgs.gov

		Timothy		Birdsong		Committee Member		Texas Parks & Wildlife Department, Inland Fisheries Division		Timothy.Birdsong@tpwd.state.tx.us

		Kristan		Blackhart		Marine Assessment Team Lead		NOAA-NMFS Office of Science and Technology		Kristan.Blackhart@noaa.gov

		Robin		Carlson		Committee Member		Pacific States Marine Fisheries Commission		Robin.Carlson@wildlife.ca.gov

		Mary 		Davis		Committee Member		Southern Instream Flow Network - SARP		Mary@southeastaquatics.net

		Nicole		Eiden		Committee Member		Arizona Game and Fish - Wildlife Management Division		neiden@azgdfd.gov

		Pam		Fuller		Committee Member		US Geological Survey, Southeast Area		pfuller@usgs.gov

		Dana		Infante		Inland Assessment Team Lead		Michigan State University		infanted@msu.edu

		Pete		Jacobson		Committee Member		MN DNR		peter.jacobson@state.mn.us

		Jeff		Kopaska		Committee Member		Iowa Department of Natural Resources		Jeff.Kopaska@dnr.iowa.gov

		Thom		Litts		Committee Member		Georgia Department of Natural Resources		thom_litts@dnr.state.ga.us

		Andy		Loftus		Committee Member		Loftus Consulting		aloftus501@aol.com

		James 		McKenna, Jr.		Committee Member		US Geological Survey - Tunison Laboratory of Aquatic Science		jemckenna@usgs.gov

		D. Moe		Nelson		Committee Member		NOAA/NOS Center for Coastal Monitoring and Assessment		david.moe.nelson@noaa.gov

		Douglas		Norton		Committee Member		US Environmental Protection Agency - Office of Water		norton.douglas@epa.gov

		Andrea		Ostroff		Co-Chair		US Geological Survey - National Program Office  		aostroff@usgs.gov

		Craig		Paukert		Committee Member		US Geological Survey - Missouri Cooperative Fish and Wildlife Research Unit		paukertc@missouri.edu

		Beth		Phelan		Committee Member		NOAA - Northeast Fisheries Science Center		Beth.Phelan@noaa.gov

		Cecil		Rich		Committee Member		U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service - Alaska Regional Office		Cecil_Rich@fws.gov

		Katherine 		Smith		Committee Member		USDA - Forest Service		klsmith@fs.fed.us

		Gary		Whelan		Co-Chair		Michigan Department of Natural Resources - Fisheries Division		whelang@michigan.gov



&16Attachment 1.  NFHP Science and Data Committee Membership - March 2014		


mailto:aloftus501@aol.commailto:pfuller@usgs.govmailto:Mary@southeastaquatics.netmailto:neiden@azgdfd.govmailto:Stan_allen@psmfc.orgmailto:infanted@msu.edumailto:jbayer@usgs.govmailto:thom_litts@dnr.state.ga.usmailto:Jose_Barrios@fws.govmailto:whelang@michigan.govhttps://webmail.state.mi.us/OWA/redir.aspx?C=7121207cd2f944aeb8476d25fa3b322a&URL=mailto%3apaukertc%40missouri.edumailto:Robin.Carlson@wildlife.ca.gov

Sheet2





Sheet3








National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 
March 9-10, 2014 


Tab 6 


 


1 
 


National Fish Habitat Partnership 
444 North Capitol Street, NW, Suite725 


Washington, DC  20001 


Tel: 202/ 624-7890  F: 202/ 624-7891  


Web www.fishhabitat.org 


  


 
MEMORANDUM 


 
To:  National Fish Habitat Board 
 
From:  Staff 


 
Date:  February 21, 2014 
 
Subject: Recommendations for Board action on the Southeast Alaska (candidate) Fish 


Habitat Partnership application 
 
 
On March 3, 2010, the National Fish Habitat Board (Board) approved a process for 


recognizing Fish Habitat Partnerships (FHPs) in 2010 and beyond, following the initial 3-year 
schedule of FHP applications that spanned 2007-2009.  The process requires prospective FHPs 
to meet the criteria in the Policies and Guidance for Fish Habitat Partnerships, last amended 
by the Board on October 8, 2008.   


 
The Southeast Alaska Fish Habitat Partnership (SEAKFHP) submitted an application for 
recognition by the Board on January 10, 2014, in accordance with the Board’s process for 
recognizing FHPs.   


 
The staff provides the following recommendation for the Board’s March 10, 2014 meeting:    
 


The Board should approve the application and recognize the SEAKFHP as a Fish 


Habitat Partnership.  The SEAKFHP has demonstrated, through its application, that it 


meets the criteria in the Policies and Guidance for Fish Habitat Partnerships.   


 


The Board’s response to the SEAKFHP application should provide the following guidance: 


 
1) The Board commends SEAKFHP for establishing a goal of protecting fish habitat 


in freshwater systems, estuaries and nearshore-marine areas and for indicating 


that as the partnership matures; focus may expand to other fish and invertebrate 


species or key stressors that are noted in the strategic plan.   It is noted that the 


focus of the partnership to date has been anadromous fish.  SEAKFHP , with the 


assistance of other marine focused partners, should consider expanding work into 


estuaries in accordance with their strategic plan.   



http://www.fishhabitat.org/





National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 
March 9-10, 2014 


Tab 6 


 


2 
 


 


2) The SEAKFHP should coordinate with other FHPs that have similar, overlapping, 


or complementary interests.  These include the already existing FHPs in Alaska 


and the coastal FHPs.  These FHPs are expected to reciprocate the relationship.  
 


3) The Board should strongly encourage the Partnership to continue to coordinate 


with the Science & Data Committee to ensure that their habitat assessments are 


compatible with the National Fish Habitat Assessment, and their data systems are 


compatible with the National Data System. 


 


 


 
Following are excerpts from the SEAKFHP application and draft strategic plan. 
 
Mission and Conservation Goals 


 
The Partnership’s mission is to support cooperative fish habitat conservation, restoration, and 
management across the region with consideration of economic, social, and cultural interests of 
local communities in its efforts.  The partnership has three initial priority conservation goals: 


 


 Protect fish habitat in freshwater systems, estuaries and nearshore-marine areas in 
Southeast, 


 Maintain water quality and quantity in those areas, and 


 Restore and enhance fragmented and degraded fish habitats in impacted areas. 
 
Steering Committee 


 
The SEAKFHP steering committee includes two State of Alaska government agency 


representatives, three federal agency representatives, three non-governmental organizations, one 
tribal representative, one local government representative, and one at-large member.  These 


entities comprise a community of interest dedicated to the protection, enhancement, and 
restoration of key habitats within SEAKFHP boundaries.  The steering committee has adopted 
operating rules and by-laws, including a clear decision-making protocol. 
 


Geographic Scope 
 
The geographic scope of the SEAKFHP encompasses the lands, freshwaters, estuaries, marine 


ecosystems, and communities of Southeast Alaska.  The partnership follows the Alaska 


Department of Fish and Game management area of Southeast Alaska and is defined as extending 


from Dixon Entrance at the South, to Cape Suckling in the North, eastward to the U.S. border, and 


includes all associated lands, freshwater and marine waters in between; a distance of about 525 


miles consisting mostly of a narrow 120 mile strip of land and mountains on the mainland and over 


a thousand islands – collectively known as the Alexander Archipelago. 


 
Strategic Priorities 
 







National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 
March 9-10, 2014 


Tab 6 


 


3 
 


Current expertise and focus of SEAKFHP partners is on populations of resident and 
anadromous salmonid species in freshwater, estuarine, and nearshore/marine habitats.  As the 
partnership matures, focus may expand to other fish and invertebrate species or key stressors 


that are noted in our strategic plan.  With the guidance of this expertise and focus four strategic 
priorities, referenced as core functions in our plan, have been identified: 


 grow diversity and capacity of the SEAKFHP linking natural resource science and 


management with regional interests, local and traditional values, and community needs; 


 build organizational strength & perseverance of the SEAKFHP for long-term 
sustainability and functionality; 


 provide services to partners that foster regional cooperation and understanding and 


result in improved on-the-grounds conservation efforts across Southeast; and 


 facilitate regionally relevant fish habitat conservation strategies (protect fish habitat and 
maintain water quality and quantity across Southeast, and 


 
Science and Data Resources 


 


SEAKFHP partners have numerous capabilities and resources available to inform baseline 


conditions of fish habitat in Southeast Alaska.  Examples of science and data resources available to 


the partnership include, among others: 


 


 The baseline National Hydrologic Datasets (NHD) collected and managed by the 


collaborative Southeast Alaska Hydrography Database (SEAK Hydro) project,  


 USFS’s Watershed Condition Framework and numerous watershed assessments on the 


Tongass National Forest,  


 ADF&G’s Anadromous Waters Catalog,  


 Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation’s (ADEC) Impaired Water Bodies 


Listing, and  


 NOAA’s Nearshore Fish Atlas of Alaska and previous agency-led assessment work 


conducted for Southeast Alaska included in the National Fish Habitat Assessment 


completed in 2010.  
 
 
 








 


For More Information Contact  


Southeast Alaska Fish Habitat Partnership 


Deborah Hart, Coordinator   


907-723-0258 


coordinator@sealaskafishhabitat.org    


www.seakfhp.org 


     


 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   


Vision 


Our partners share a common vision to ensure healthy, thriving habitats that support all life stages of resident, 
anadromous, estuarine and marine-dependent fishes across their historical range in Southeast Alaska.  


Mission 


We work to support cooperative fish habitat 


conservation, restoration and management across 


Southeast Alaska with consideration of economic, 


social and cultural interests of local communities in 


our endeavors. 


Geographic Scope 


Our partnership encompasses the lands, freshwaters, 


estuaries, nearshore areas, marine ecosystems and 


communities of Southeast Alaska.  It is defined as 


extending from Dixon Entrance at the South, to Cape 


Suckling in the North, eastward to the U.S. border, 


and includes all associated lands, freshwater and 


marine waters in between. 


Core Partnership Functions 


 Grow diversity and capacity of the partnership linking natural resource science and management with 
regional interests, local and traditional values and community needs   


 Build organizational strength & perseverance of the partnership for long-term sustainability and functionality 


 Provide services to partners that foster regional cooperation and understanding and result in improved on-
the-ground conservation efforts across Southeast Alaska  


 Facilitate regionally relevant fish habitat conservation strategies across Southeast Alaska - specific 
conservation priorities are to protect fish habitat in freshwater systems, estuaries and the nearshore/marine 
areas of Southeast Alaska, maintain and restore water quality and quantity in the region, and restore and 
enhance fragmented and degraded fish habitats in impacted areas. 
 


Growing Partner Network 


Southeast Alaska Watershed Coalition – Sitka Conservation Society – Trout Unlimited – The Nature Conservancy 


Alaska Department of Fish and Game – City and Borough of Yakutat – Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation  


US Fish and Wildlife Service – NOAA – US Forest Service – Central Council Tlingit Haida Indian Tribes of Alaska 


  


The SEAKFHP is a candidate partnership recognized by the National Fish Habitat Board and 
follows guidelines set out in the National Fish Habitat Action Plan.  More information at 
www.fishhabitat.org 


Southeast Alaska Fish Habitat Partnership 
419 6th Street, Suite 200 


Juneau, Alaska 99824 
(907) 723-0258 


www.seakfhp.org 
 



mailto:coordinator@sealaskafishhabitat.org

http://www.fishhabitat.org/






  National Fish Habitat Board  
  March 9-10, 2014  Meeting 


  Tab 7 
 


 


Title : A proposal and opportunity to partner with federal agencies to advance federal fish 


habitat goals and the National Fish Habitat Action Plan.   


 


Desired outcome(s): The desired outcomes are to: 


1) Approve this concept; and  


2) Initiate discussions with USFWS and NOAA staff to identify alignment in fish habitat 


goals and pursue opportunities to achieve mutual fish habitat-related goals by designating a 


portion of existing federal grant program funding to national fish habitat partnerships. 


 


Background:  Among other efforts, the Board carries out the mission of the Partnership by 


mobilizing and focusing national, regional, and local support of the National Fish Habitat 


Action Plan, which seeks to achieve significant gains in fish habitat protection, enhancement 


and restoration.  It is proposed that initially, NOAA and the USFWS conduct a review of 


their fish and fish-habitat related grant programs, and, beginning in 2015, potentially dedicate 


or align a percentage of those grant funds for disbursement through the 18 NFHP fish habitat 


partnerships to achieve mutually agreed upon fish habitat objectives.  


 


The recently announced competitive grant process that the USFWS and NFHP implemented 


for 2014 could serve as the cornerstone for focal species and habitats and reporting 


requirements; this process could be expanded to include NOAA trust species and habitats.   


 


It is proposed that these funds could be disbursed to NFHP annually as a pilot project for five 


years, and that at the conclusion of five years of funding, a thorough analysis of specific and 


measurable deliverables, challenges, and other key aspects be examined to determine the 


merits of the program and efficiencies gained, and to allow for course corrections to 


maximize mutual benefits. 


 


Staff Recommendation/Proposal: 


 The Board should discuss the positive outcomes that could be achieved by 


strengthening its relationship with federal agencies that seek deliverables and 


outcomes associated with protecting, restoring, and enhancing fish habitats. 


 The Board should discuss how this proposal integrates with numerous federal agency 


competitive funding processes and the federal MOU for implementing the National 


Fish Habitat Action Plan. 


 


Reference material: Proposal to partner with federal natural resource agencies to advance 


federal fish habitat goals and the National Fish Habitat Action Plan. 








  National Fish Habitat Board  


  March 9-10, 2014  Meeting 


  Tab 7 
 


 


National Fish Habitat Partnership Proposal to Federal Natural Resource Agencies 
1 


NATIONAL FISH HABITAT 


PARTNERSHIPS  


Proposal to partner with federal natural resource agencies to 


advance federal goals and the National Fish Habitat Action Plan 


BACKGROUND 


NFHP 


Since 2011, the mission of the National Fish Habitat Action Plan has been to protect, restore and 


enhance the nation's fish and aquatic communities through partnerships that foster fish habitat 


conservation and improve the quality of life for the American people.  


This mission is achieved by: 


 Supporting the 18 existing fish habitat partnerships and fostering new efforts; 


 Mobilizing and focusing national and local support for achieving fish habitat 


conservation goals; 


 Setting national and regional fish habitat conservation goals; 


 Measuring and communicating the status and needs of fish habitats; and 


 Providing national leadership and coordination to conserve fish habitats. 


The NFHP Action Plan, first produced in 2006 and updated in 2012, describes goals to: 


 Protect and maintain intact and healthy aquatic systems; 


 Prevent further degradation of fish habitats that have been adversely affected;  


 Reverse declines in the quality and quantity of aquatic habitats to improve the overall 


health of fish and other aquatic organisms; and 


 Increase the quality and quantity of fish habitats that support a broad natural diversity 


of fish and other aquatic species. 


A total of 18 fish habitat partnerships located throughout the United States work to achieve the 


goals and objectives of the NFHP Action Plan. Each of these goals aligns with fish habitat-


specific goals and objectives and grant programs of many federal natural resource agencies. In 


addition, for many of these federal grant programs, fish habitat partnership steering committee 


members and/or the partnerships themselves play a critical role in providing scientific review 



http://fishhabitat.org/sites/default/files/www/NFHP_AP_Final.pdf





  National Fish Habitat Board  


  March 9-10, 2014  Meeting 


  Tab 7 
 


 


National Fish Habitat Partnership Proposal to Federal Natural Resource Agencies 
2 


and evaluations of proposals submitted for funding to federal agencies. 


 


The following are examples of three federal agency grant programs in which there is a clear 


nexus with fish habitat partnership activities: 


NOAA 


In 2012, NOAA announced its Habitat Blueprint, describing a vision for creating healthy habitats 


that sustain resilient and thriving marine and coastal resources, communities, and economics. 


Its purpose is to encourage strategic thinking and acting with partner organizations to address 


coastal and marine habitat loss and degradation. The Russian River in California is the first 


selected Habitat Focus Area of the Habitat Blueprint. NOAA seeks to rebuild endangered coho 


and threatened steelhead stocks, improve precipitation forecasts in the watershed, and increase 


resilience to flood damage throughout the year. In the case of the Russian River watershed, fish 


habitat partnerships, such as the California Fish Passage Forum, have been working with 


partners to address streamflow and fish habitat issues within this watershed since 2008, e.g. 


Grape Creek, a NFHP 10 Waters to Watch project in 2013. 


In October of 2013, the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) announced 


it is awarding $36 million for more than 40 coastal habitat restoration projects across the United 


States, noting these funds would benefit fish species. Examples included removing fish barriers 


for river herring in the Northeast Region, reconnecting wetlands and stream channels to tidal 


flow in the Northwest Region, and removing barriers to fish passage and improving in -stream 


conditions to restore habitat for salmon and steelhead in the Southwest Region. In many cases, 


NOAA-funded projects, such as Mill Creek and the Lower Klamath River in the Southwest 


Region, involve locations and partners that fish habitat partnerships have been working with to 


address fish habitat issues for years. In addition, groups of fish habitat partnerships, such as the 


coastal fish habitat partnerships, are working together nationally to highlight coastal and 


marine issues affecting anadromous and other coastal fish stocks throughout the United States. 


NRCS 


The Natural Resources Conservation Service has a program titled, Wildlife Habitat Incentive 


Program (WHIP), which seeks to address restoration of declining or important native fish and 


wildlife habitats; protect, restore, develop or enhance fish and wildlife habitat to benefit at -risk 


species; reduce the impacts of invasive species on fish and wildlife habitats; and protect, restore, 



http://www.habitat.noaa.gov/habitatblueprint/about.html

http://www.habitat.noaa.gov/habitatblueprint/russianriver.html

http://www.cafishpassageforum.org/

http://www.cafishpassageforum.org/index.cfm?content.display&pageID=131

http://fishhabitat.org/waters-to-watch/2013

http://www.habitat.noaa.gov/highlights/fundingforhabitatrestoration.html

http://www.habitat.noaa.gov/highlights/fundingforhabitatrestoration.html

http://www.pacificfishhabitat.org/index.cfm?content.display&pageID=137

http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/main/national/programs/financial/whip/

http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/main/national/programs/financial/whip/





  National Fish Habitat Board  


  March 9-10, 2014  Meeting 


  Tab 7 
 


 


National Fish Habitat Partnership Proposal to Federal Natural Resource Agencies 
3 


develop or enhance declining or important aquatic wildlife species’ habitats. In Fiscal Years 


2011 and 2012, NRCS awarded a total of $83.87 million and $47.36 million, respectively, for 


WHIP program activities. The geographic scope of fish habitat partnerships intersect with most, 


if not all, of the projects funded through the WHIP program. 


USFWS 


The USFWS has numerous programs dedicated to restoring coastal and marine environments, 


including the National Coastal Wetlands Conservation Grant Program, which will fund $17 


million in grants to coastal states in FY2015. One of the projects funded in the past included 


purchasing land and a conservation easement in Willapa Bay, a location where the Pacific 


Marine and Estuarine Fish Habitat Partnership (PMEP) provided funding in 2013, and adjacent 


to the Bear River Estuary, one of NFHPs 10 Waters to Watch in 2013. There are numerous other 


examples of USFWS-funded programs that align with NFHP Action Plan goals and objectives 


and the strategic plans and frameworks of the 18 national fish habitat partnerships.  


OTHER EXAMPLES OF RELEVANT FEDERAL GRANT PROGRAMS 


Environmental Protection Agency—National Estuary Program ($27 million - 2013); 


Chesapeake Bay Program ($50 million - 2013); Gulf of Mexico Program ($1.85 million – 2014); 


Wetlands Program Development Grants ($14.64 million – 2014); Nonpoint Source 


Implementation Grants (319 Program) ($164.5 million – 2014); Chesapeake Bay Program Grants 


($52.3 million – 2014) 


US Fish and Wildlife Service—Coastal Program ($6 million – 2014) 


US Army Corps of Engineers—Aquatic Ecosystem Restoration Grants ($19.7 million – 2013) 


Natural Resources Conservation Service—Conservation Innovation Grants ($25 million – 2013) 


National Fish and Wildlife Foundation—Hurricane Sandy Coastal Resiliency Competitive 


Grant Program ($100 million – 2013); Gulf Environmental Benefit Fund ($2.5 billion over 5 


years) 



http://www.pacificfishhabitat.org/

http://www.pacificfishhabitat.org/

http://www.pacificfishhabitat.org/index.cfm?content.display&pageID=130





  National Fish Habitat Board  


  March 9-10, 2014  Meeting 


  Tab 7 
 


 


National Fish Habitat Partnership Proposal to Federal Natural Resource Agencies 
4 


THE ISSUE 


Desired outcomes of many of federal natural resource agency programs directly align with the 


desired outcomes of the National Fish Habitat Action Plan. Yet there are numerous and 


overlapping federal family grant programs, and a paucity of funding available to the 18 


national fish habitat partnerships, despite the fact that these partnerships play an integral role in 


the protection, enhancement, and restoration of fish habitats throughout the United States. In 


addition, because of the overlapping matrix of federal family grant programs that focus on 


similar habitat issues, conservation leaders that implement restoration projects are required to 


complete progress and annual reports to numerous agencies and entities, on different timelines, 


and using different reporting forms, which creates significant inefficiencies and wastes precious 


and scarce resources. 


OUR PROPOSAL 


We propose initially that one or two federal agencies, specifically NOAA and the USFWS, 


conduct a review of their fish and fish-habitat related grant programs, and, beginning in 2015, 


and dedicate or align  a percentage of those grant funds for disbursement through the 18 fish 


habitat partnerships through NFHP to achieve mutually agreed upon objectives related to the 


federal agencies and the NFHP Action Plan. The recently announced competitive grant process 


that the USFWS and NFHP implemented for 2014 could serve as the cornerstone for focal 


species and habitats and reporting requirements; this process could easily be expanded to 


include NOAA trust species and habitats. An initial crosswalk of the goals of fish habitat 


partnership strategic frameworks, NOAA Habitat Focus Areas, and the USFWS Coastal 


Program, e.g., could identify possible opportunities to efficiently direct funding through fish 


habitat partnerships to achieve goals for all three programs. 


We propose these funds could be disbursed to NFHP annually as a pilot project for five years, 


and that at the conclusion of five years of funding, a thorough analysis of specific and 


measurable deliverables, challenges, and other key aspects be examined to determine the merits 


of the program and efficiencies gained, and to allow for course corrections to maximize mutual 


benefits. 



http://fishhabitat.org/sites/default/files/www/NFHP_AP_Final.pdf





  National Fish Habitat Board  


  March 9-10, 2014  Meeting 


  Tab 7 
 


 


National Fish Habitat Partnership Proposal to Federal Natural Resource Agencies 
5 


EXPECTED RESULTS 


Our proposal would provide the following results: 


 Financial benefits—There would be more efficient use of limited financial resources for 


conservation entities to work together to achieve specific and measurable conservation 


outcomes for target focal species and habitats.  This proposal would not require “new” 


funding. 


 Resource benefits—The national fish habitat partnerships play an important, time-saving, 


efficient convening role for the federal agencies. As an example, in 2012, the Pacific Marine 


and Estuarine Fish Habitat Partnership submitted one grant to NOAA for its 2013 Coastal 


Habitat Restoration Program Grant. The grant was a request for $4,481,241 on behalf of 11 


projects in Oregon, Washington, and California that dealt with specific coastal habitat 


outcomes NOAA sought to achieve. If this particular partnership had not played this 


convening role, NOAA would have received 23 individual projects for funding 


consideration (PMEP rigorously evaluated all 23 submissions and deemed 11 had the level 


of scientific rigor, monitoring and evaluation, fund leveraging and other components to 


support). 


 Technical benefits—The national fish habitat partnerships would be recognized for the 


scientific expertise they provide and the rigorous review of projects that inform federal 


grant program disbursements. Adequately supporting the national fish habitat 


partnerships will ensure this expertise is available long-term. 


CONCLUSION 


NFHP appreciates the opportunity to engage with its long-standing federal partners in a 


discussion about the potential to implement this proposal to achieve financial, technical, and 


resource benefits mutually desired by NFHP and the federal agencies.  


Our track record demonstrates our confidence and ability to work with NOAA and the USFWS 


to design a long-term sustainable program that accelerates conservation outcomes for critical 


fish habitat in the United States.  


Thank you for your consideration of this request. 













Draft for Director’s approval 
     November 4, 2013 


Page 1 
 


A competitive, performance-based approach to allocate flexible funds 


to implement the National Fish Habitat Action Plan 


 


U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service  


November 2013 
 


Background 


 
The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service receives annual appropriations to implement the National 
Fish Habitat Action Plan.  Under Service policy (717 FW 1), funds are used to: 


1. Support our participation in the National Fish Habitat Board and activities of the Board. 


2. Support Action Plan coordination and leadership at the Regional level. 
3. Implement habitat-based cost-shared projects. 


 
Funds used to implement habitat-based cost-shared projects (project funds) are “flexible”, i.e. 


subject to re-allocation each year.  The Service policy states that each year, the Director 
“allocates the available project funding among Fish Habitat Partnerships consistent with the 
goals and strategies of the National Fish Habitat Board” and “issues guidance for project 
selection”.   


 
Fish Habitat Partnerships (FHPs) have now been established throughout the United States.  It is 
timely to put in place a method of allocating project funds that will provide long-term 
predictability and that will help the Service to meet its mission through more strategic delivery of 


fish habitat conservation projects. 
 


New approach to allocating funds 
 


Starting in FY 2014, the Service will implement a competitive, performance-based process to 
allocate project funds.  Each year the Fish and Wildlife Service (FWS) will distribute project 
funds to FHPs in two categories:  1) stable operational support and 2) competitive, performance-
based funds to encourage strategic conservation delivery.  All project funds in both categories 


must be accounted for in the Fisheries Information System annually. 
 
Stable Operational Support 
 


Stable operational support will be provided to FHPs at a level of $75,000/year.  FHPs may use 
the funds for operations (coordination, outreach, travel, etc.) and/or for fish habitat conservation 
projects (habitat restoration, assessment, planning, etc.) to maximize conservation results, with 
no restrictions on how the funds are split between operations and projects.  To receive stable 


operational support each year, a partnership must meet the criteria set by the National Fish 
Habitat Board for recognizing FHPs (see Policies and Guidance for Fish Habitat Partnerships) 
and must submit a Work Plan and Accomplishments Report. 
 


 
Competitive, Performance-based Support 
 



http://www.fws.gov/policy/717fw1.html

http://fishhabitat.org/sites/default/files/www/approved_fhp_guidance.pdf





Draft for Director’s approval 
     November 4, 2013 


Page 2 
 


Competitive, performance-based funds consist of the remaining project funds spread across three 
performance levels.  FHPs will be assigned a performance level based on their ability to meet an 
increasingly complex set of criteria.  At each performance level, an FHP must meet all criteria in 


order to qualify for that performance level.  The criteria and their corresponding performance 
levels are listed below and summarized in Table 1.  The basis for assigning FHP performance 
levels will be 1) a work plan with a one-year planning horizon, detailing how the FHP and its 
partners propose to use FWS project funds and 2) an accomplishments report describing how the 


FHP has implemented projects in the previous three years, utilizing the following criteria. 
 
Criteria at each Performance Level 
 


1. Meet the basic FHP requirements established by the National Fish Habitat Board for 
strategic planning and assessments 
o Performance level 1 = Coordinate and compile scientific assessment information on 


fish habitats within the FHP’s boundaries 


o Performance level 2 = Identify and include plan to fill data gaps necessary to refine 
and complete fish habitat assessments; incorporates existing habitat assessments into 
FHP Strategic Plans 


o Performance level 3 = Fill data gaps and refine habitat assessments, including climate 


change considerations, for incorporation into Science and Data Committee’s National 
Assessment   


 
2. Execute projects that benefit FHP priority species or priority areas (applies to projects 


conducted over the previous 3 years) 
o Performance level 1 = 75% of projects focus on FHP priority species or priority areas 
o Performance level 2 = 85% of projects focus on FHP priority species or priority areas  
o Performance level 3 = 95% of projects focus on FHP priority species or priority areas 


 
3. Execute projects that benefit FWS priority species / trust resources (applies to projects 


conducted over the previous 3 years) 
o Performance level 1 = 25% of projects address habitat issues for FWS priority species 


or trust resources 
o Performance level 2 = 50% of projects address habitat issues for FWS priority species 


or trust resources 
o Performance level 3 = 75% of projects address habitat issues for FWS priority species 


or trust resources 
 


4. Project Completion and Success  
o Performance level 1 = 50% of projects funded by FWS NFHAP dollars, in whole or 


in part, during the prior three years have been completed  consistent with the project 
design 


o Performance level 2 = 75% of projects funded by FWS NFHAP dollars, in whole or 
in part, during the prior three years have been completed  consistent with the project 


design  







Draft for Director’s approval 
     November 4, 2013 


Page 3 
 


o Performance level 3 = 90% of projects funded by FWS NFHAP dollars, in whole or 
in part, during the prior three years have been completed  consistent with the project 
design 


 
5. Monitoring and Evaluation (applies to projects conducted over the previous 3 years)  


o Performance level 1 = 50% of projects include a monitoring and evaluation plan  
o Performance level 2 = 75% of projects include a monitoring and evaluation plan  


o Performance level 3 = 90% of projects include a monitoring and evaluation plan 
 


6. Leveraging of FWS NFHAP Project Funds   
Leveraging of FWS NFHAP funds over the previous three years (see Definitions for 


Performance Level Criteria 
o Performance level 1 = 1:1 leveraging achieved over a 3 year period 
o Performance level 2 = 2:1 leveraging achieved over a 3 year period 
o Performance level 3 = 3:1 leveraging achieved over a 3 year period 


 
7. Strategic Implementation  


o Performance level 1 = 75% of proposed projects include measureable goals and 
objectives to address:  1) FHP priority species or priority areas; or 2) habitat issues 


for FWS priority species or trust resources  
o Performance level 2 = 85% of proposed projects include measureable goals and 


objectives to address:  1) FHP priority species or priority areas; or 2) habitat issues 
for FWS priority species or trust resources  


o Performance level 3 = 95% of proposed projects include measureable goals and 
objectives to address:  1) FHP priority species or priority areas; or 2) habitat issues 
for FWS priority species or trust resources  


 


8. Conservation Actions and Project Outcomes  
o Performance level 1 = 50% of proposed projects specify conservation actions that will 


produce desired conservation outcomes and achieve project goals and objectives   
o Performance level 2 = 75% of proposed projects specify conservation actions that will 


produce desired conservation outcomes and achieve project goals and objectives   
o Performance level 3 = 100% of proposed projects specify conservation actions that 


will produce desired conservation outcomes and achieve project goals and objectives 
 


  







Draft for Director’s approval 
     November 4, 2013 


Page 4 
 


Table 1.  Summary of criteria at each performance level 


Criteria 
Performance Levels 


Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 


Evaluating past performance 


Basic FHP 
Requirements 


Coordinate and compile 
scientific assessment 


information on fish habitats 


within FHP boundaries  


Identify and include plan to 


fill data gaps necessary to 
refine and complete fish 


habitat assessment; 


incorporate existing habitat 
assessments into FHP 


Strategic Plan  


Fill data gaps, including 


climate change 
considerations, for 


incorporation into the NFHP 


Science and Data 
Committee’s National 


Assessment 


FHP Priority Areas / 


Species 


75% of projects focus on 


FHP priority species or 
priority areas 


85% of projects focus on 


FHP priority species or 
priority areas 


95% of projects focus on 


FHP priority species or 
priority areas 


FWS Priority Species 
/ Trust Resources 


25% of projects address 


habitat issues for FWS 
priority species or trust 


resources  


50% of projects address 


habitat issues for FWS 
priority species or trust 


resources 


75% of projects address 


habitat issues for FWS 
priority species or trust 


resources 


Project Completion 


and Success 


50% of projects funded by 
FWS during the prior three 


years have been completed  
consistent with the project 


design 


75% of projects funded by 
FWS during the prior three 


years have been completed 
consistent with the project 


design 


90% of projects funded by 
FWS during the prior three 


years have been completed  
consistent with the project 


design 


Monitoring and 
Evaluation 


50% of projects include a 
monitoring and evaluation 


plan 


75% of projects include a 
monitoring and evaluation 


plan 


90% of projects include a 
monitoring and evaluation 


plan 


Leveraging of FWS 
NFHAP Project Funds 


Leverage funding over a 3 
year period of at least 1:1   


Leverage funding over a 3 
year period of at least 2:1   


Leverage funding over a 3 
year period of at least 3:1 


Evaluating proposed projects  


Strategic 


Implementation 


75% of proposed projects 


include measureable goals 
and objectives to address: 1) 


FHP priority species  or 


priority areas; or 2)  habitat 
issues for FWS priority 


species or trust resources 


85% of proposed projects 


include measureable goals 
and objectives to address:  1) 


FHP priority species or 


priority areas; or 2) habitat 
issues for FWS priority 


species or trust resources 


95% of proposed projects 


include measureable goals 
and objectives to address: 1) 


FHP priority species or 


priority areas; 2)  or habitat 
issues for FWS priority 


species or trust resources 


Conservation Actions 


and Project Outcomes 


50% of proposed projects 


specify conservation actions 
that will produce desired 


conservation outcomes and 
achieve project goals and 


objectives  


75% of proposed projects 


specify conservation actions 
that will produce desired 


conservation outcomes and 
achieve project goals and 


objectives  


100% of proposed projects 


specify conservation actions 
that will produce desired 


conservation outcomes and 
achieve project goals and 


objectives 


 
  







Draft for Director’s approval 
     November 4, 2013 


Page 5 
 


Funding at each Performance Level 
 
Each successive performance level increases in complexity and is associated with a proportional 


increase in funding amount.  The amount of funds at each performance level will depend on 
annual appropriations and will be made available at each level based on the following formula: 
 


F = N1(X) + N2 (3X) + N3 (5X) 


 
Where: 


F = Amount of funding available in a given year after stable operational support is met. 
N1 = Number of FHPs at Performance Level 1 


N2 = Number of FHPs at Performance Level 2 
N3 = Number of FHPs at Performance Level 3 
X = Amount of funding an FHP in performance level 1 receives 
3X = Amount of funding an FHP in performance level 2 receives 


5X = Amount of funding an FHP in performance level 3 receives 
  
Each FHP will be required to produce a Work Plan and Accomplishments Report (Report).  The 
FWS will use information provided in the report to determine the amount of project funding the 


FHP receives.  The process and timeline for reviewing the FHPs’ reports is shown in Appendix 
1.  Instructions for writing the report are in Appendix 2. 
 
Adjustments for fluctuations in NFHAP funding 


 
Every eligible FHP will receive $75,000 each year for stable operational support.  Project funds, 
beyond stable operational support, will vary from year to year based on the total amount of 
NFHAP funding available and the number of FHPs at each performance level.  NFHAP funding 


support is only available to fund projects identified by the eighteen existing FHPs.  Partnerships 
recognized by the National Fish Habitat Board after December 26, 2012 are not eligible to 
receive an allocation from the existing NFHAP project funds until such time as additional project 
funds become available for this purpose.  


 
NFHAP Project Implementation 
 
Consistent with the Service policy (717 FW 1) on NFHAP, we encourage our field stations to 


develop and implement projects that meet Action Plan criteria.  If we cannot implement a 
project, we may use a cooperative agreement, grant, or contract to fund NFHAP projects that a 
partner organization will complete. 
 


Expiration and Modification of the Methodology 


 
This methodology will remain in place until passage of the National Fish Habitat Conservation 
Act or at the direction of the Director.  Performance measurements at each level may need to be 


modified or enhanced as our collective scientific knowledge matures.



http://www.fws.gov/policy/717fw1.html





Appendix 1 


Page 1 
 


Annual Timeline for Allocating NFHAP Project Funds    
 
The actual timing of events may vary depending on the appropriations process.  The timeline for 


the first year (FY 2014) will begin with FHP submissions due on February 28, 2014.  
 


January 
FHPs submit  work plans and accomplishment reports to FWS lead Region for each 


FHP, and to the Board 


February 


Board reviews FHP submissions and provides comments and recommendations to 


RCs 
 
RCs individually review FHP submissions from their respective Regions, and 
request additional information or clarification from FHPs, if needed 


March 


For stable base operational funds, RCs as a group consider Board input and review 
FHP submissions for consistency.  ARDs individually approve FHP submissions 


from their respective Regions. 
 
For competitive, performance-based funds, RCs as a group consider Board input, 
assign performance levels to FHPs, and forward recommendations to ARDs 


April 


For stable base operational funds, RDs for lead Regions forward FHP submissions 


to AD-FAC 
 
For competitive, performance-based funds, ARDs as a group review 
recommendations, revise if needed, and forward recommended performance levels 


to AD-FAC   


May 


 


For stable base operational funds, AD-FAC reviews FHP submissions and forwards 
allocation to the Director for approval 


 
For competitive, performance-based funds, AD-FAC reviews recommended 
performance levels and forwards allocation to the Director for approval 
 


Director informs FHPs of final performance level and allocates project funds to RDs  


AD-FAC = Assistant Director-Fish and Aquatic Conservation 
RD = Regional Director 
ARD = Assistant Regional Director for Fish and Aquatic Conservation 
RC = FWS Regional Coordinator for NFHP 


FHP = Fish Habitat Partnership 
Board = National Fish Habitat Board 







Appendix 2 


Page 1 
 


Instructions for Fish Habitat Partnerships 


Work Plans and Accomplishment Reports 


 


Introduction 
Each year, the Fish and Wildlife Service (FWS) will distribute project funds to Fish Habitat 
Partnerships (FHPs) in support of the National Fish Habitat Action Plan.  Project funds will be 
broken into two categories:  1) stable operational support and 2) competitive, performance-based 


funds to encourage strategic conservation delivery.   
 
The FWS will use information provided in a Work Plan and Accomplishment Report (Report) to 
determine the amount of project funding an FHP will receive.  To be eligible to receive stable 


operational support, FHPs must complete Section 1.  To compete for performance-based funds, 
FHPs must complete Sections 2 and 3.  The documents must be submitted to the respective 
Regional NFHP Coordinator by November 1


1
.  Regional NFHP Coordinators are listed in a table 


below. 


 


Instructions 


 
Section 1.  Justification for Stable Operational Support (maximum 6 pages) 


 
This section will provide an overview of all projects and activities over the previous three 
years and anticipated projects and activities over the next three years.  The intent is to show 
the full context of FHP efforts 1) supported by FWS funds, and/or 2) supported by all other 


sources of funds and in-kind contributions.  While intended to be comprehensive, Section 1 
need not be highly detailed.  It should concisely describe these projects and activities as well 
as how these projects and activities (both individually and collectively) have contributed, or 
are expected to contribute, to achieving FHP goals and leverage partner resources and 


capabilities.  The document should be self-contained, without attachments, though links to 
web-accessible documents may be inserted. 
 


Section 2.  Accomplishment Report (3-year reporting period) 


This section will provide a detailed description of all projects and activities of the FHP over 
the previous three years.  The intent is to show the full context of FHP accomplishments that 
were: 1) supported by FWS funds, and/or 2) supported by all other sources of funds and in-
kind contributions.  It will include the following checklist, with narrative evidence justifying 


each response.  Provide documentation if necessary, either in an attachment or via web links.  
 


1.  Habitat Assessment (choose one): 
o The FHP has coordinated and compiled scientific assessment information on fish 


habitats within its partnership area. 
o The FHP has identified, and has a plan to fill, data gaps necessary to refine and 


complete fish habitat assessments, and incorporates existing habitat assessments 
into the FHP’s strategic plan. 


                                              
1
 For the initial (FY 2014) cycle, the submission deadline will be February 28, 2014. 







Appendix 2 


Page 2 
 


o The FHP has filled data gaps and refined habitat assessments, including climate 
change considerations, for incorporation into the Science and Data Committee’s 
national assessment. 


 
2. FHP Priority Areas / Species: 


What percentage of projects initiated in the past three years were focused on FHP 
defined priority species or priority areas?  (choose one) 


o At least 75%  
o At least 85%  
o At least 95%  
o Less than 75% 


 
3. FWS Priority Species / Trust Species: 


What percentage of projects initiated in the past three years addressed habitat issues 
for FWS priority or trust resources?  (choose one) 


o 25%  
o 50%  
o 75%  
o Less than 25% 


 
4. Project Completion and Success: 


What percentage of projects, funded in whole or in part, with FWS NFHAP funds in 
the past three fiscal years have been completed consistent with the project design?  


(choose one) 
o 50%  
o 75%  
o 90%  


o Less than 50% 
 


5.  Monitoring and Evaluation: 
What percentage of projects initiated in the past three fiscal years included a 


monitoring and evaluation plan?  (choose one)  
o 50%  
o 75%  
o 90%  


o Less than 50% 
 


6.  Leveraging of Project Funds:  
Over a three year period, the FHP leveraged FWS funding by a ratio of (choose one): 


o At least 1:1 
o At least 2:1 
o At least 3:1 
o No FWS funds were leveraged 


 


 


 







Appendix 2 


Page 3 
 


Section 3.  Work Plan – (1-year planning horizon) 


 
This section consists of a prioritized list of new or ongoing habitat projects over the next 


year.  FHP coordination and operational expenses should be written up as individual projects 
and included in this list.  The following information must be provided for each prioritized 
project: 
  


 Project title and number as recorded in the FWS Fisheries Operational Needs System 
(FONS) 


 FWS funds requested, including direct and indirect cost as defined in the FWS policy 


manual (http://www.fws.gov/policy/717fw1.pdf) 


 Anticipated partner contributions to the project (cash and in-kind) expressed in dollar 
value 


 Which national conservation strategy, if any, of the National Fish Habitat Board is 


addressed by the project?  The Board’s priorities are accessible online at 
http://fishhabitat.org/content/nfhp-national-conservation-strategies      


 Which objective, if any, of the Service’s climate change strategy is addressed by the 


project?  The strategy is accessible online at: 
http://www.fws.gov/home/climatechange/strategy.html. 


 
FWS Regional NFHP Coordinators will work with the FHPs to identify FONS numbers, 


indirect costs, FWS priority species, and other information as needed.  (See list of Regional 
NFHP Coordinators on the following page.) 


 
In your narrative, specifically identify the following information and supporting evidence for 


each new or ongoing project:  
 


1. Measurable goals and objectives that will address:  1) FHP priority species or priority 
area(s); or 2) habitat issues for FWS priority species or trust resources 


 
2. Proposed conservation actions that will produce desired conservation outcomes and 


achieve project goals and objectives 



http://www.fws.gov/policy/717fw1.pdf

http://fishhabitat.org/content/nfhp-national-conservation-strategies

http://www.fws.gov/home/climatechange/strategy.html





Appendix 2 


Page 4 
 


FWS Regional NFHP Coordinators  
 
 


L
ea


d
 R


eg
io


n
 f


o
r 


H
aw


ai
i 
F


is
h
 H


ab
it


at
 P


ar
tn


er
sh


ip
 


P
ac


if
ic


 M
ar


in
e 


an
d
 E


st
u
ar


in
e 


P
ar


tn
er


sh
ip


 


D
es


er
t 
F


is
h
 H


ab
it


at
 P


ar
tn


er
sh


ip
 


D
ri


ft
le


ss
 A


re
a 


R
es


to
ra


ti
o
n
 E


ff
o
rt


 


F
is


h
er


s 
an


d
 F


ar
m


er
s 


P
ar


tn
er


sh
ip


 


G
re


at
 L


ak
es


 B
as


in
 F


is
h
 H


ab
it


at
 


P
ar


tn
er


sh
ip


 


M
id


w
es


t 
G


la
ci


al
 L


ak
es


 P
ar


tn
er


sh
ip


 


O
h


io
 R


iv
er


 B
as


in
 F


is
h
 H


ab
it


at
  


P
ar


tn
er


sh
ip


 


S
o


u
th


ea
st


 A
q
u
at


ic
 R


es
o
u
rc


es
 P


ar
tn


er
sh


ip
 


A
tl


an
ti


c 
C


o
as


ta
l 
F


is
h
 H


ab
it


at
 P


ar
tn


er
sh


ip
 


E
as


te
rn


 B
ro


o
k
 T


ro
u
t 
Jo


in
t 
V


en
tu


re
 


G
re


at
 P


la
in


s 
F


is
h
 H


ab
it


at
 P


ar
tn


er
sh


ip
 


K
en


ai
 P


en
in


su
la


 F
is


h
 H


ab
it


at
 P


ar
tn


er
sh


ip
 


M
at


-S
u
 B


as
in


 S
al


m
o
n
 H


ab
it


at
 


P
ar


tn
er


sh
ip


 


S
o


u
th


w
es


t 
A


la
sk


a 
S


al
m


o
n
 H


ab
it


at
 


P
ar


tn
er


sh
ip


 


C
al


if
o
rn


ia
 F


is
h
 P


as
sa


g
e 


F
o
ru


m
 


W
es


te
rn


 N
at


iv
e 


T
ro


u
t 
In


it
ia


ti
v
e 


R
es


er
v
o
ir


 F
is


h
er


ie
s 


H
ab


it
at


 P
ar


tn
er


sh
ip


 


E
-m


a
il


 


D
an


_
S


h
iv


el
y


@
fw


s.
g


o
v


 


K
ar


in
_


E
ld


ri
d


g
e@


fw
s.


g
o


v
 


M
au


re
en


_
G


al
la


g
h


er
@


fw
s.


g
o


v
 


W
al


te
r_


B
o


lt
in


@
fw


s.
g


o
v


 


C
al


li
e_


M
cm


u
n


ig
al


@
fw


s.
g


o
v


 


S
co


tt
_


R
o


th
@


fw
s.


g
o


v
 


D
av


id
_


W
ig


g
le


sw
o


rt
h


@
fw


s.
g


o
v


 


L
is


a_
G


_
H


ek
i@


fw
s.


g
o


v
 


C
ec


il
ia


_
L


ew
is


@
fw


s.
g


o
v


 


P
h


o
n


e 


5
0


3
-2


3
1


-2
2


7
0


 


5
0


5
-2


4
8


-6
4


7
1


 


6
6


0
-5


6
2


-1
0


0
8


 


8
4


3
-8


1
9


-1
2


2
9


 


3
0


4
-5


3
6


-4
7


6
0


 


3
0


3
-2


3
6


-4
2


1
9


 


9
0


7
-7


8
6


-3
9


2
5


 


7
7


5
-8


6
1


-6
3


0
0


 


7
0


3
-3


5
8


-2
1


0
2


 


N
a


m
e 


D
an


 S
h


iv
el


y
 


K
ar


in
 


E
ld


ri
d


g
e 


M
au


re
en


 


G
al


la
g


h
er


 


T
ri


p
p


 B
o


lt
in


 


C
al


li
e 


M
cM


u
n


ig
al


 


S
co


tt
 R


o
th


 


D
av


id
 


W
ig


g
le


sw
o


rt
h


 


L
is


a 
H


ek
i 


C
ec


il
ia


 L
ew


is
 


R
eg


io
n


 


1
 


2
 


3
 


4
 


5
 


6
 


7
 


8
 


H
ea


d
q
u
ar


te
rs


 







Appendix 3 


Page 5 
 


Definitions for Performance Level Criteria 


 
Leveraging of FWS NFHAP Project Funds   


This criterion indicates the extent to which an FHP has leveraged FWS NFHAP project funds 
over the previous three fiscal years.  It is measured as a ratio of the total FWS NFHAP project 
funds an FHP received to the total non-FWS cash or in-kind contributions the FHP secured over 
the previous three fiscal years.  This criterion does not include in-kind partner contributions of 


staff time for FHP coordination.  However, monetary contributions for FHP coordination and 
staff positions; grants; donations; and in-kind materials and services are taken into account.  The 
intention is to encourage FHPs to secure additional project funds to supplement FWS NFHAP 
project funds.  (Note:  Fiscal year refers to federal fiscal year, which begins October 1 and ends 


September 30, annually.) 
 
Project Implementation   
This benchmark identifies the percentage of projects completed consistent with the project 


design (as identified in FIS) in the previous three fiscal years.  (Note:  Some projects are 
designed to be done over a multi-year period.)  This criterion does not apply to FHPs that have 
not executed a project using FWS NFHAP project support.  It will go into effect three years after 
the FHP has executed a project using FWS NFHAP project support dollars.  (Note:  Given the 


funding timeline of the last few years, it will be necessary to calculate the three year timetable 
beginning with the previous fiscal year.  In many cases funds are not available in time to take 
action during the current fiscal year.  For example, for FY 2014 allocations, an FHP would report 
its accomplishments for FY 2010, 2011, and 2012). 


 
Project Monitoring and Evaluation   
The benchmark applies to projects funded in the previous three fiscal years.  Monitoring and 
evaluation plans help to determine if:  1) the project was completed as designed, 2) the project 


resulted in the desired habitat effect, and 3) the project produced the desired biological outcome.  
Plans may be at the project level or may encompass multiple projects across the landscape.   
 
Projects Aligned with FHP Priority Areas/Species   


These are defined by the individual FHP in its strategic plan and may be species, system, 
impairment, or place based.  The benchmark identifies the percentage of projects, funded in the 
previous three years or proposed for the next year, that address these priorities. 
 


FWS Priority Species/Trust Resources   
These are species and/or focal areas defined by the FWS for conservation action.  Specific 
priorities will be identified by the Fisheries Management Team.  The benchmark identifies the 
percentage of projects, funded in the previous 3 years or proposed for the next year, that address 


these priorities. 
 
 








 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
February 28, 2014 
 
Memorandum For: NFHP Board 
 
From:   Matt Menashes, Senior Policy Advisor 
 
Subject:  REVISED Draft 3 Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws for a Nonprofit  
   Corporation to Support the National Fish Habitat Partnership 
 
 
This document includes some final recommended changes for the 501(c)(3) documents based on 
additional discussions held this month.  Changes added in v2 are in yellow.  Changes added in v3 
are in blue. 
 
The issues we are attempting to address are: 


• providing an option for an appropriate level of overlap between the existing board and the 
new corporation’s board 


• refining the selection and nomination process for the 501(c)(3) board members, and 
• ensuring that any fundraising by the new corporation is used solely for FHPs which are 


approved by, and in good standing, with the National Fish Habitat Board.  This does not 
restrict fundraising for national programmatic needs. 


 
 


National Fish Habitat Board 
  March 9-10, 2014 Meeting 


  Tab 9 







 ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION 
National Fish Habitat XXXX 


 
The undersigned, a majority of whom are citizens of the United States, desiring to form a Non-Profit 
Corporation under D.C. Code Title 29 Chapter 4, do hereby certify: 
 
First:  The name of the Corporation shall be National Fish Habitat XXXX.  The corporation [shall/shall not] 
have members. 
 
Second:  The Registered Agent is: 
 [must be a person or corporate registered agent in D.C.] 
 
Third:  Said corporation is organized exclusively for charitable, educational, and scientific purposes 
related to the conservation, protection, and restoration of fish and aquatic habitats in the United 
States through the National Fish Habitat Partnership or the chapters organized under this 
corporation, including, for such purposes, the making of distributions to organizations that qualify as 
exempt organizations under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section 
of any future federal tax code. 
 
Fourth:  The names and addresses of the persons who are the initial directors of the corporation are as 
follows: 


1. Matthew E. Menashes, 2025 Glen Ross Road, Silver Spring, Maryland  20910 
2. TBD 
3. TBD 


 
Fifth:  No part of the net earnings of the corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or be distributable to its 
members, trustees, officers, or other private persons, except that the corporation shall be authorized and 
empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and to make payments and 
distributions in furtherance of the purposes set forth in Article Third hereof. No substantial part of the 
activities of the corporation shall be the carrying on of propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence 
legislation, and the corporation shall not participate in, or intervene in (including the publishing or 
distribution of statements) any political campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any candidate for public 
office. 
 
Notwithstanding any other provision of these articles, this corporation shall not, except to an insubstantial 
degree, engage in any activities or exercise any powers that are not in furtherance of the purposes of this 
corporation. 
 
Sixth:  Upon the dissolution of the corporation, assets shall be distributed for one or more exempt 
purposes within the meaning of section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding 
section of any future federal tax code, or shall be distributed to the federal government, or to a state or 
local government, for a public purpose. Any such assets not so disposed of shall be disposed of by a 
Court of Competent Jurisdiction of the county in which the principal office of the corporation is then 
located, exclusively for such purposes or to such organization or organizations, as said Court shall 
determine, which are organized and operated exclusively for such purposes. 
 
In witness whereof, we have hereunto subscribed our names this day of XXXXX, 201X. 


National Fish Habitat Board 
  March 9-10, 2014 Meeting 


  Tab 9 







BYLAWS 
 OF THE 


CORPORATION NAME TO BE DETERMINED 
                                                                   
 ARTICLE I 
 OFFICE AND REGISTERED AGENT 
 
Section 1.  Principal Office.  The principal office of the Corporation shall located in a place chosen by the 
Board of Directors. 
 
Section 2.  Registered Office and Agent.  The Corporation shall have and continuously maintain a 
registered office and a registered agent in the District of Columbia, as required by the District of Columbia 
Nonprofit Corporation Act.  The registered agent shall be either an individual resident of the District of 
Columbia or a corporation authorized to transact business in the District of Columbia.   
 
 
 ARTICLE II 
 PURPOSES 
 
The purposes for which the Corporation is formed are as set forth in the Articles of Incorporation.  
 
The mission of the Corporation is to conserve, protect, and restore fish and aquatic habitat in the United 
States by supporting the National Fish Habitat Partnership and regional Fish Habitat Partnerships.  In all 
activities and respects, the Corporation will advance the National Fish Habitat Partnership and the 
regional Fish Habitat Partnerships.  In no manner may the funds raised by the Corporation be used to 
support any organization that is not a member of the National Fish Habitat Partnership or a Fish Habitat 
Partnership approved by the National Fish Habitat Board. 
 
 ARTICLE III 
 MEMBERSHIP 


 
The Corporation shall have no members. 


 
 
 ARTICLE IV   
 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
Section 1.  Powers.  There shall be a Board of Directors of the Corporation, which shall supervise and 
control the business, property, and affairs of the Corporation, except as otherwise expressly provided by 
law, the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation, or these Bylaws.  In the event of an emergency, the 
Board may assume emergency powers such as, but not limited to, modifying lines of succession, and 
relocating offices. 
 
Section 2.  Number and Qualifications.  The members of the initial Board of Directors of the Corporation 
shall be those individuals named in the Articles of Incorporation and shall serve until their successors are 
elected and qualified.  Thereafter, the Board of Directors of the Corporation shall be composed of no less 
than eight and no more than 12 individuals.  The number of directors may be decreased, but no decrease 
shall have the effect of shortening the term of any incumbent director. 


 
Section 3.  Nomination, Election and Term of Office.  Individuals will be recommended for positions on the 
Board of Directors of the Corporation by the non-federal members of the National Fish Habitat Board or 


National Fish Habitat Board 
  March 9-10, 2014 Meeting 


  Tab 9 







its successor board.  Upon recommendation, nominated to the Board of Directors of the Corporation by 
the Chair of the National Fish Habitat Board, who is a state agency representative, will seek  
 
 


[OPTION A:  consensus from those non-federal members of the National Fish Habitat Board for 
its Chair to nominate a slate of or individual candidates for approval by the Executive Committee 
of the Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies  Nominations will be reviewed by the Executive 
Committee of the Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies (AFWA) who shall also then elect 
directors by majority vote at their regular September meeting.   
 
[OPTION B: at the National Fish Habitat Board’s regular Fall meeting a majority vote of those 
non-federal members of the National Board to elect a slate of or individual candidates to the 
Board of Directors of the Corporation.   


 
Directors will take office on the first day of October following their election. 
 
At the time of his or her election, each director shall be assigned to Class A, Class B, or Class C, and an 
effort shall be made to keep each class of directors of approximately equal size.   Each director shall hold 
office for a term of three years, except that for the Board elected at the organizational meeting in 201X: 


a. Directors in Class A shall have their term expire in 201X+1 (and every three years thereafter);  
b. Directors in Class B shall have their term expire in 201X+2 (and every three years thereafter); 
and 
c. Directors in Class C shall have their term expire in 201X+3 (and every three years thereafter). 


 
No director shall serve more than two consecutive terms nor more than four terms total. 


 
Section 4.  Resignation.  Any director may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Chairman of 
the Board.   Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein, or, if no time is specified, at 
the time of acceptance thereof as determined by the Chairman of the Board. 
 
Section 5.  Removal.  Any director may be removed from such office, with or without cause, by a two-
thirds vote of all of the directors then in office at any regular or special meeting of the Board called 
expressly for that purpose.   
 
Section 6.   Vacancies.  The Chair of the National Fish Habitat Board shall nominate a candidate to fill a 
vacancy to the AFWA Executive Committee.  A nomination will be reviewed by the Executive Committee, 
which shall elect a new director by majority vote at their next scheduled meeting or via email if the next 
meeting is more than four weeks away.  A new director will take office immediately upon approval and 
shall serve until the regular expiration of the term for that position.   
 
Section 7.  Regular Meetings.  A regular annual meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation shall 
be held each year, at such time, day and place as shall be designated by the Board of Directors. 
 
Section 8.  Special Meetings.  Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called at the direction of 
the Chair or by a majority of the voting directors then in office, to be held at such time, day, and place as 
shall be designated in the notice of the meeting. 
 
Section 9.  Notice.  Notice of the time, day, and place of any meeting of the Board of Directors shall be 
given at least 14 days previous to the meeting and in the manner set forth in Section 2 of Article VII.  The 
purpose for which a special meeting is called shall be stated in the notice.  Any director may waive notice 
of any meeting by a written statement executed either before or after the meeting.  Attendance and 
participation at a meeting without objection to notice shall also constitute a waiver of notice. 


National Fish Habitat Board 
  March 9-10, 2014 Meeting 


  Tab 9 







Section 10.  Quorum.  A majority of the directors then in office shall constitute a quorum for the 
transaction of business at any meeting of the Board of Directors. 
 
Section 11.  Manner of Acting.  Except as otherwise expressly required by law, the Articles of 
Incorporation of the Corporation, or these Bylaws, the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors 
present at any meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors.  Each 
director shall have one vote.  Voting by proxy shall not be permitted. 
 
Section 12.  Unanimous Written Consent In Lieu of a Meeting.  The Board may take action without a 
meeting if written consent to the action is signed by all of the directors. 


  
Section 13.  Telephone Meeting.  Any one or more directors may participate in a meeting of the Board of 
Directors by means of a conference telephone or similar telecommunications device, which allows all 
persons participating in the meeting to hear each other.  Participation by telephone shall be equivalent to 
presence in person at the meeting for purposes of determining if a quorum is present. 


 
ARTICLE V 


 OFFICERS 
 
Section 1.  Officers.  The officers of the Corporation shall minimally consist of a Chair, a Vice Chair, a 
Secretary, and a Treasurer.  The Corporation shall have such other assistant officers as the Board of 
Directors may deem necessary and such officers shall have the authority prescribed by the Board.  One 
person shall not hold two offices.  
 
Section 2.  Election of Officers.  The officers of the Corporation shall be elected by the directors at the 
annual meeting of the Board of Directors. 
 
Section 3.  Term of Office.  The officers of the Corporation shall be installed at the annual meeting at 
which they are elected and shall hold office for two year until the next annual meeting or until their 
respective successors shall have been duly elected. 
 
Section 4.  Resignation.  Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Chair of the 
Board.  Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified in the notice, or if no time is specified, then 
immediately.   
 
Section 5.  Removal.  Any officer may be removed from such office, with or without cause, by two-thirds 
vote of all of the directors then in office at any regular or special meeting of the Board called expressly for 
that purpose.   
 
Section 6.  Vacancies.  A vacancy in any office shall be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired 
term. 
 
Section 7.  Chair. The Chair shall give active direction and exercise oversight pertaining to all affairs of 
the Corporation.  He or she may sign contracts or other instruments, which the Board of Directors has 
authorized to be executed, and shall perform all duties incident to the office of Chair as may be 
prescribed by the Board of Directors. 
 
Section 8.  Vice Chair.  The Vice Chair shall preside over meetings of the Corporation in the absence of 
the Chair.  In addition, the Vice Chair shall exercise the powers of the Chair if the Chair is unable to 
perform his or her activities for any period of time. 
 


National Fish Habitat Board 
  March 9-10, 2014 Meeting 


  Tab 9 







Section 9.  Secretary.  The Secretary shall keep the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors; 
see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws, ensure staff 
members keep corporate records; and in general perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and 
such other duties as may be assigned by the Board of Directors. 
 
Section 10.  Treasurer.  The Treasurer shall be responsible for and oversee all financial matters of the 
Corporation.  The Treasurer shall ensure staff members properly receive and give receipts for moneys 
due and payable to the Corporation and deposit all such moneys in the name of the Corporation in 
appropriate banks, and in general perform all the duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other 
duties as from time to time may be assigned to him or her by the Board of Directors. 
 
Section 10.  Bonding.  If requested by the Board of Directors, any person entrusted with the handling of 
funds or valuable property of the Corporation shall furnish, at the expense of the Corporation, a fidelity 
bond approved by the Board of Directors. 


 
ARTICLE VI 


COMMITTEES 
 
Section 1.  Standing Committees.  The Board of Directors, by resolution adopted by a majority of the 
directors then in office may designate and appoint one or more standing committees, including but not 
limited to a finance committee and a nominations committee, each consisting of two or more directors, 
which committees shall have and exercise the authority of the Board of Directors in the governance of the 
Corporation.  However, no committee shall have the authority to amend or repeal these Bylaws, elect or 
remove any officer or director, adopt a plan of merger, or authorize the voluntary dissolution of the 
Corporation.  
 
Section 2.  Executive Committee.  Between meetings of the Board of Directors, on-going oversight of the 
affairs of the Corporation may be conducted by an Executive Committee, the membership of which shall 
be the officers of the Board of Directors and the President/Chief Executive Officer. 
 
Section 3.  Other Committees and Task Forces.  The Board of Directors may create and appoint 
members to such other committees and task forces as they shall deem appropriate.  Such committees 
and task forces shall have the power and duties designated by the Board of Directors, and shall give 
advice and make non-binding recommendations to the Board, and shall be limited to the term established 
by the Board and then dissolved or renewed. 
 
Section 4.  Term of Office.  Each member of a committee shall serve until a successor is appointed, 
unless the committee is sooner dissolved.   
 
Section 5.  Vacancies.  Vacancies in the membership of committees may be filled by the Chair of the 
Board.   


 
Section 6.  Rules.  Each committee and task force may adopt rules for its meetings not inconsistent with 
these Bylaws or with any rules adopted by the Board of Directors. 
 
 


ARTICLE VII 
MEETINGS 


 
Section 1.  Annual Meeting.  The organization shall hold an annual meeting of the Corporation to be held 
at the time and place designated by the Board, to be designated no later than three (3) months prior to 
the date of the meeting.  Written notice specifying the time, date, and place of the annual meeting shall be 


National Fish Habitat Board 
  March 9-10, 2014 Meeting 


  Tab 9 







given to each Board member by the secretary no later than two (2) months prior to the opening of said 
annual meeting.  The agenda of the annual meeting shall be prepared by the Executive Committee for the 
approval of the board. 
 
Section 2.  Board Meetings.  Board meetings of the Corporation shall be called at such time and place as 
the board may select.  The secretary shall give thirty (30) days written notice of any Board meeting to 
each Board member.  Board meetings may be held in conjunction with the Annual Meeting of the 
Corporation. 
 
 


ARTICLE VIII 
PRESIDENT/CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 


 
Subject to the control of the Board and any supervisory powers the Board may give to the chairman of the 
Board, the president/chief executive officer shall have general supervision, direction, and control of the 
business and affairs of the Corporation including the Corporation’s staff, and shall see that all orders and 
resolutions of the Board are carried into effect. The president/chief executive officer shall also perform all 
duties incidental to this office that may be required by law and all such other duties as are properly 
required of this office by the Board.  The president/CEO shall have such other powers and perform such 
other duties as from time to time may be prescribed for him or her by the Board, these bylaws, or the 
chairman of the Board.  


 
 


ARTICLE IX 
CHAPTERS 


 
Section 1.  Regional Fish Habitat Partnerships.  Any regional Fish Habitat Partnership (FHP) approved by 
the National Fish Habitat Board, may request recognition by the Corporation as a “chapter” of the 
Corporation.  Recognition as a chapter is in addition to recognition as an FHP, and as such nothing in this 
article is intended to conflict with the responsibilities of the National Fish Habitat Board or with the roles 
and responsibilities of an FHP. 


a. Any FHP requesting recognition from the Corporation as a chapter of the Corporation must 
comply with policies and procedures established by the Board, including entering into the 
standard Memorandum of Understanding with the Corporation. 


a. A representative from each FHP recognized as a chapter will serve as a liaison to the 
Corporation.  Liaisons will provide an annual report to the Corporation, provide copies of all 
meeting minutes and resolutions, and be responsible for ensuring communications between FHP 
and the Corporation. 


 
Section 2.  Financial and Other Services.  The Corporation will establish policies and procedures to 
provide financial and other services required by chapters, including but not limited to: 


a. accounting and fiscal management including the establishment of restricted and unrestricted 
accounts; 


b. banking and investment services; 
c. insurance; and 
d. auditing. 


 
Section 3.  Powers, Duties, Responsibilities.  FHPs hold all such powers, duties, and responsibilities as 
required to carry out the activities envisioned in their strategic plans that are not specifically reserved for 
the Corporation.  Fundraising by FHPs should be coordinated with the Corporation and shall not conflict 
with the fundraising efforts of the Corporation.  Each FHP may determine if it will be a membership 
organization, and if so, will determine the composition of its membership in consultation with the 
Corporation.  Each FHP shall have at least two (2) meetings each fiscal year.  No FHP shall be or hold 


National Fish Habitat Board 
  March 9-10, 2014 Meeting 


  Tab 9 







itself out to be an agent of the Corporation.   
 
Section 4.  Standing.  For a FHP to be in good standing as a chapter, it must support the purposes of the 
Corporation, meet requirements set out by these Bylaws and the policies and procedures of the 
Corporation, meet all financial obligations, file reports promptly, and participate in the annual meeting of 
the Corporation. 
 
Section 5.  Probation, Suspension, Revocation, or Dissolution.   


a. A chapter may be placed on probation with the Corporation by the Board of Directors for failure to 
comply with these Bylaws and established policies and procedures of the Corporation. The board 
will notify the chapter leadership in writing that the chapter is on probation.  The chapter will have 
two months to meet the necessary requirements and be removed from probationary status.  
Failure to comply will result in suspension. 


b. The activities of a chapter may be suspended by the Board of Directors of the Corporation for 
failure to comply with these Bylaws and established Policies and Procedures of the Corporation. 


c. A chapter’s status may be withdrawn by a majority vote of the Board of Directors of the 
Corporation. 


d. A FHP may choose to drop its chapter status. 
e. If an FHP drops or loses its chapter status, all cash and other assets remaining after the payment 


of all debts shall be paid to an appropriate private nonprofit organization recommended by the 
leadership of the FHP and approved by the Board of Directors of the Corporation. 


 
Section 6.  Reactivation and Reinstatement of a Chapter.  A FHP may be reactivated as a chapter 
following suspension by three-fourths (3/4) vote of the Board.  A FHP which loses its status as a chapter 
or drops itself from chapter status may be reinstated by meeting any requirements the Board establishes 
for a newly organizing chapter. 
 


ARTICLE X 
 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
Section 1.  Fiscal Year.  The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be October 1 through September 30. 
 
Section 2.  Notice.  Whenever under the provisions of these Bylaws notice is required to be given to a 
director, officer, or committee member, such notice shall be given in writing by first-class mail or overnight 
delivery service with postage prepaid to such person at his or her address as it appears on the records of 
the Corporation.  Such notice shall be deemed to have been given when deposited in the mail or the 
delivery service.  Notice may also be given by electronic mail, or hand delivery, and will be deemed given 
when received. 
 
 ARTICLE XI 
 INDEMNIFICATION 
 
Unless otherwise prohibited by law, the Corporation shall indemnify any director or officer or any former 
director or officer, and may by resolution of the Board of Directors indemnify any employee, against any 
and all expenses and liabilities incurred by him or her in connection with any claim, action, suit, or 
proceeding to which he or she is made a party by reason of being a director, officer, or employee.  
However, there shall be no indemnification in relation to matters as to which he or she shall be adjudged 
to be guilty of a criminal offense or liable to the Corporation for damages arising out of his or her own 
gross negligence in the performance of a duty to the Corporation. 
 
Amounts paid in indemnification of expenses and liabilities may include, but shall not be limited to, 
counsel fees and other fees; costs and disbursements; and judgments, fines, and penalties against, and 


National Fish Habitat Board 
  March 9-10, 2014 Meeting 


  Tab 9 







amounts paid in settlement by, such director, officer, or employee.  The Corporation may advance 
expenses or, where appropriate, may itself undertake the defense of any director, officer, or employee.  
However, such director, officer, or employee shall repay such expenses if it should be ultimately 
determined that he or she is not entitled to indemnification under this Article. 
 
The Board of Directors shall authorize the purchase of insurance on behalf of any director, officer, 
employee, or other agent against any liability incurred by her/her which arises out of such person's status 
as a director, officer, employee, or agent, whether or not the Corporation would have the power to 
indemnify the person against that liability under law. 
 


 
ARTICLE XII 


AMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS 
 
These Bylaws may be amended or new Bylaws adopted upon the affirmative vote of two-thirds of all the 
directors then in office at any regular or special meeting of the Board with the consent of the non-federal 
members of National Fish Habitat Board or its successor organization.  The notice of the meeting shall 
set forth a summary of the proposed amendments. 
 
 


ARTICLE XIII 
PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY 


 
The rules contained in Roberts' Rules of Order Newly Revised shall govern all meetings in all cases in 
which they are not inconsistent or in conflict with these Bylaws. 


 
 


ARTICLE XIV 
DISSOLUTION 


 
Upon the dissolution of the Corporation, the Board of Directors, after paying or making provision for the 
payment of all of the liabilities of the Corporation, shall dispose of all of the remaining assets of the 
Corporation exclusively to conserve, protect, and restore fish and aquatic habitat in the United States 
through the National Fish Habitat Partnership in such manner, or to such organization or organizations as 
shall at the time qualify as a tax-exempt organization or organizations recognized under Section 501(c)(3) 
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the corresponding provision of any future United 
States internal revenue statute, as the board shall determine. 


National Fish Habitat Board 
  March 9-10, 2014 Meeting 


  Tab 9 





		Draft Bylaws for NFH c3 v3.pdf

		ARTICLE VI

		COMMITTEES









